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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

June 30, 2012

December 31,

(Unaudited) 2011 (1)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 116,22° $ 206,29¢
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 665 1,02(
Senior intere-only 210,50¢ 188,67¢
Subordinate! 640,42" 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only 20,61: 22,01¢
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 2,779,23! 3,144,53.
Accrued interest receivab 23,02¢ 22,70¢
Other asset 15,04¢ 1,40:
Subtotal 3,805,74. 4,193,55!
Assets of Consolidated VIEs
Nor-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabteriest entities ("VIEs"), at fair valt 3,151,80 3,270,33.
Securitized loans held for investment, net afvaiince for loan losses of $11.5 million and $13.
million, respectively 1,322,89. 256,63:
Accrued interest receivak 26,14. 26,61¢
Subtotal 4,500,84. 3,553,58!
Total asset $ 8,306,58! $ 7,747,13!
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($2.5 billi@h$h8 billion pledged as collateral,
respectively’ $ 2,362,08! $ 2,672,98!
Payable for investments purcha:s 14,86: -
Accrued interest payab 2,47 3,294
Dividends payabl 92,418 112,93
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,60¢ 1,687
Investment management fees and expenses payaiifdiste 12,96¢ 12,95¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 54,64¢ 44,46°
Subtotal 2,541,06! 2,848,33.
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs
Securitized debt, NoAgency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs (%8l2on and $3.3 billior
pledged as collateral, respective 1,371,73 1,630,27!
Securitized debt, loans held for investment (®ili®n and $238.0 million pledged as collateral
respectively’ 1,203,51! 212,77¢
Accrued interest payab 9,557 8,13(
Subtotal 2,584,81. 1,851,18.
Total liabilities $ 5,125,87. $ 4,699,511
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,500000Chares authorized, 1,027,505,245 and
1,027,467,089 shares issued and outstanding, tesgg: $ 10,26¢ $ 10,267
Additional paic-in-capital 3,604,02. 3,603,73!
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 650,60° 433,45!
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,084,18) (999,84()
Total stockholders' equi $ 3,180,71. $ 3,047,61!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 8,306,58" $ 7,747,13!

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finansiatements
See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slxag

(unaudited’

For the Quarter Ende

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201  June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30, 201

Net Interest Income:

Interest incomt $ 52,03. $ 70,85¢ $ 103,35( $ 128,94:
Interest expens (2,477) (2,959 (4,799 (6,017
Interest income, Non-Agency RMBS and securitizethftransferred tc

consolidated VIE: 109,49: 109,00: 207,84. 222,96(
Interest expense, Non-Agency RMBS and securitinadd transferred t

consolidated VIE: (19,480 (32,839 (53,529 (65,359
Net interest income (expens 139,57: 144,06t 252,86: 280,53:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (22,472 (57,926 (44,557 (82,979
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (53,219 (4,249 (69,500 (12,379
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (65,687) (62,17() (114,05) (95,357
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s (10,997 (29,500 (10,180) (9,669)
Net realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,199 (4,299 (9,592 (7,149
Net gains (losses) on interest rate swa (16,18¢) (23,797 (19,777) (16,817
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (2,537) 11,88: 15,41t 15,98¢
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn - (913 16,01( 1,72¢
Total other gains (losse (18,719 (12,827 11,65! 90¢
Net investment income (los 55,16¢ 69,06¢ 150,46t 186,08«
Other expenses
Management fee 12,90! 13,15: 25,81 25,90:
Provision for loan losses, n (1,059 - (892) 1,44z
General and administrative expen 2,541 1,82( 4,53( 3,301
Total other expense 14,38t 14,97 29,45( 30,65
Income (loss) before income taxe 40,78 54,09" 121,01t 155,43:
Income taxe: - 11¢ 2 81¢
Net income (loss $ 40,78. $ 53,97¢ $ 121,01« $ 154,61
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0t $ 0.1z $ 0.1¢F
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0t $ 0.1z $ 0.1¢F
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,026,809,70 1,026,308,89 1,026,785,89 1,026,259,30
Diluted 1,027,505,24 1,027,130,49 1,027,497,41 1,027,096,96
Dividends declared per share of common stoc $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1 $ 0.2C $ 0.27
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 40,78 $ 53,97¢ $ 121,01 $ 154,61
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, ni (4,027) (87,82) 119,11: (216,39()
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet income (loss)

for other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss 65,68’ 62,17( 114,05: 95,35!
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeis) included in ne
income (loss - 91z (16,010 (1,729
Other comprehensive income (lo 61,66¢ (24,739 217,15: (122,76%)
Comprehensive income (los $ 102,44 $ 29,24, $ 338,16( $ 31,85:




See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@dstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited
Retained
Accumulated Earnings
Common Additional Other (Accumulate:
Stock Paid-in Comprehensiv
Par Value Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26 $ 3,601,891 $ 680,12. $ (613,68) $ 3,678,58
Net income - - - 154,61 154,61
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-$ate securities
net - - (216,39() - (216,39()
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetkt

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit
impairment

losses - - 95,35:¢ - 95,35:¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggesns

included in net income (los - - (2,729 - (2,729
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvers 2 54C - - 542
Proceeds from common stock offerir - (8 - - (8)
Proceeds from restricted stock gra - 24¢ - - 24¢
Common dividends declared, $0.27 per sl - - - (277,10) (277,10))
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,26 $ 3,602,67. $ 557,35 $ (736,17) $ 3,434,111
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,267 $ 3,603,73' $ 433,45 $ (999,84() $ 3,047,611
Net income - - - 121,01- 121,01
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-$ate securities
net - - 119,11: - 119,11:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetet

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit
impairment

losses - - 114,05: - 114,05:
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggeins

included in net income (los - - (16,010 - (16,010
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend reinvers 1 11€ - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 16¢ - - 16¢
Common dividends declared, $0.20 per sl - - (205,359 (205,359

Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,26¢

$ 3,604,02. $ 650,60° $ (1,084,18) $ 3,180,71

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousand:

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201  June 30, 201

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 121,01 $ 154,61
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigem by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (28,34() (21,049
Amortization of deferred financing cos 5,26t 90¢
Amortization of debt issue costs of securitizedt( (882) 6,50:
Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s 10,18( 9,66¢
Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS (15,419 (15,989
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investr (16,010 (1,729
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 114,05: 95,35:
Provision for loan losses, n (892) 1,44z
Equity-based compensation expe! 16¢ 24¢
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivaét (725) (8,999

Decrease (increase) in other as 447 36&
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable andl@h#ities (79 962

Increase (decrease) in investment managemenafebexpenses payable to affili 7 774

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payeadt 61C (112)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi 189,39¢ 222,96!
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
RMBS portfolio:

Purchase (101,76¢) (3,653,58)

Sales 79,05¢ 668,52¢

Principal payment 362,62! 244,22.
RMBS transferred to consolidated VIE

Principal payment 263,77 385,16¢
Securitized loans

Purchase (1,185,66) -

Principal payment 114,14¢ 48,40:
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (467,82¢) (2,307,26)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem 3,918,31! 9,335,70.

Payments on repurchase agreem (4,229,21) (6,824,01)

Net proceeds from common stock offeril - (8)

Payment of deferred financing co (8,079 -

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, Idaid for investmer 1,101,52 -

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, loahs tor investmen (110,49) (45,159

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, RMBS8sferred to consolidated VII - 311,01

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, RMBSdferred to consolidated VII (257,93)) (366,75)

Net proceeds from direct purchase and divideird/estmen 117 542

Common dividends pa (225,88 (318,12)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 188,35! 2,093,20!
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (90,072) 8,901
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 206,29¢ 7,17:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 116,220 $ 16,08(
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest receive $ 283,01 $ 321,00!

Interest paic $ 58,60. $ 64,97¢

Taxes pait $ - $ 3

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 25,80F $ 24,97¢
Non-cash investing activities:

Payable for investments purcha $ 14,86 $ -

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ 217,15 $ (122,760

Non-cash financing activities:




Common dividends declared, not yet ¢ $ 92,41: $ 133,42!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Compgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial jirbffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amenbleel Company formed the following wholly-ownedtjfied REIT

subsidiaries: Chimera Securities Holdings, LLQuty 2008; Chimera Asset Holding LLC and Chimerdditgy LLC in June 2009; and
Chimera Special Holding LLC in January 2010 whigkaiwholly-owned subsidiary of Chimera Asset Haydin.C. In July 2010, the
Company formed CIM Trading Company LLC, a wholly+wed taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS").

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.38% of the Company’s common shardse Company is managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC™y) smvestment advisor registered with the Securiied Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
Restatemer

The Company restated its previously issued (i) olidated statement of financial condition includedts Annual Report on Form 10-K as of
December 31, 2010 and (ii) consolidated statenmfriperations and comprehensive income, consolidstetements of changes in
stockholders’ equity, and consolidated statemehtsigh flows for the years ended December 31, 20002009, including the cumulative
effect of the restatement on retained earningsufaatated deficit) as of the earliest period presdifthe “Restatement”) as part of its Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011. ThéeaReaent also impacted each of the quarters fopéhieds beginning with the
Company’s inception in November 2007 through thartgr ended September 30, 2011. The historitaliim periods included in this Form
10-Q reflect the Restatement.

(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepasetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United SttesS. GAAP"). In the opinion of management, aljusiments considered necessary for a
fair presentation of the Company's financial positiresults of operations and cash flows have be#unded. The accompanying unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements shoulddasl in conjunction with the consolidated finahstatements and the related
management’s discussion and analysis of finanoiatlition and results of operations filed with ourrval Report on Form 1R-for the fisca
year ended December 31, 20

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIEST) which the Company is the primary beneficiaryl gignificant intercompany balances and transasi
have been eliminated in consolidation.

VIEs are defined as entities in which equity ineest(i) do not have the characteristics of a cdimigpfinancial interest, and/or (ii) do not
have sufficient equity at risk for the entity tadince its activities without additional subordinbfimancial support from other parties. The
entity that consolidates a VIE is known as its @riynbeneficiary, and is generally the entity wilitlie power to direct the activities that most
significantly impact the VIE’s economic performanaed (ii) the right to receive benefits from thEE\Or the obligation to absorb losses of
the VIE that could be significant to the VIE. RdiEs that do not have substantial on going actsitithe power to direct the activities that
most significantly impact the VIES’ economic perfance may be determined by an entity’s involvermétit the design and structure of the
VIE.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. Prior to January 1, 2010,
these VIEs met the definition of Qualified Spedalrpose Entities (“QSPE”) and, as such, were rigjiestito consolidation by the Company.
Effective January 1, 2010, all such VIEs were co@asd for consolidation based on the criteria ilCA8.0,Consolidationresulting in the
consolidation of certain VIEs that were not presgiguconsolidated. Non-Agency RMBS transferred tosmidated VIES are composed
entirely of senior certificates.




(b) Statement of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s consolidated statements of finarzabition separately present: (i) the Company’satiassets and liabilities, and (ii) the
assets and liabilities of consolidated securittratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cdy lo@ used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs arenarecourse to the Company.

The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbdf the consolidated securitization vehialie to the determination that these entities
are substantively similar and therefore a furttisaggregated presentation would not be more mefunirighe notes to the consolidated
financial statements describe the Company’s daeséts and liabilities and the assets and liaslibf consolidated securitization

vehicles. See Note 8 for additional informatiolated to the Company’s investments in consolidatazliritization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundschvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser@&orporation. There were no restrictions on eeshcash equivalents at June 30, 2012
and December 31, 2011.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in obtigns backed by pools of mortgage
loans. The Company delineates between (1) AgedBRand (2) Non-Agency RMBS as follows: Agency RMBI® mortgage pass-
through certificates, collateralized mortgage adtiions (“CMOs”"),and other RMBS representing interests in or olibgatbacked by pools
mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by agenctbe &f.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or felyechhrtered corporations such as
Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae where principal and @gerepayments are guaranteed by the respectimeyagéthe U.S. Government or
federally chartered corporation. Non-Agency RMBBS iaot issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Government@uger other institution and are
subject to credit risk. Repayment of principal amérest on Non-Agency RMBS is subject to the genfance of the mortgage loans or
RMBS collateralizing the obligation.

The Company classifies its RMBS as availabledale, records investments at estimated fair vaduweacribed in Note 5 of these consolid
financial statements, and includes unrealized garslosses considered to be temporary on all RMB8uding interest-only strips, in other
comprehensive income (loss) in the ConsolidateteB8tants of Operations and Comprehensive Inconterest-only strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and
Comprehensive Income. From time to time, as gatfte@overall management of its portfolio, the Ca@myp may sell any of its RMBS
investments and recognize a realized gain or Iless@mponent of earnings in the Consolidated i&tatés of Operations and Comprehen:
Income utilizing the average cost method.

The Company’s accounting policy for interest inccanel impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS secesittaries depending on the characteristics oféberity as follows:

Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

ASC 310-20Nonrefundable Fees and Other Co88SC 310-207)is applied to the recognition of interest incometf@ following securitie:
° Agency RMBS

° Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condits at the acquisition date (referred to hereaftetNonAgency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):




Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized creging agency. The Company uses the lowestgauailable
The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

The security cannot be contractually prepaid sumt the Company would not recover substantiallyodlits
recorded investmen

wn e

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premsiand discounts associated with the acquisitidhexe securities, is recognized over
the life of such securities using the interest rndthased on the contractual cash flows of the #gcuin applying the interest method, the
Company considers estimates of future principgb@yenents in the calculation of the constant eféecyield. Differences that arise between
previously anticipated prepayments and actual yrapats received, as well as changes in future grepat assumptions, result in a
recalculation of the effective yield on the segudh a quarterly basis. This recalculation resulthe recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the remMBsepayment assumptions and a corresponding se@adecrease in reported interest
income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount aatdatie not of high credit quality at the time ofghase are accounted for under A
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@¥edit Quality(*"ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4@Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial AssefSASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3beffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unabledabiect substantially all contractual cash flowslod security

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atttguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definasl rated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otieagettled in such a way that the Company woutdewover substantially all
its recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gré&uality is recognized using the interest metbaded on management’s estimates
of cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based oagemens estimate for each security of 1
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabggarvation of current market information and idel@ssumptions related to fluctuations
in prepayment speeds and the timing and amouneditdosses. Quarterly, the Company reviews drappropriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analygEsved from external sources, internal modeld,thke Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credies, and other factors. Changes in the amoufdraimding of cash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated & ldist evaluation date, are considered to be qithgtive changes or adverse changes. For
securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, anytipesbr adverse change in cash flows that doesasuft in the recognition of an other-
than-temporary impairment results in a prospedticecsase or decrease in the effective interestusee to recognize interest income. For
securities accounted for under ASC 310-30, onlyifitant positive changes are reflected prospebtiethe effective interest rate used to
recognize interest income. Adverse changes in tawsis expected to be collected are generally ée@bnsistently for RMBS accounted for
under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30, and generalhitrestecognition of an other-than-temporary impaént with no change in the effective
interest rate used to recognize interest income.




Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly
basis the Company evaluates its securities fordhi@-temporary impairment (“OTTI")If the Company intends to sell an impaired secL
or it is more-likely-than-not that the Company vii# required to sell an impaired security befasaitticipated recovery, then the Company
must recognize an OTTI through a charge to earreggs to the entire difference between the investita amortized cost and its fair value
at the measurement date. If the Company doesitestd to sell an impaired security and it is noterikely-than-not that it would be
required to sell an impaired security before recpvihe Company must further evaluate the sectmitympairment due to credit losses. The
credit component of OTTI is recognized in earniagd the remaining or non-credit component is rezthi@s a component of OCI. Following
the recognition of an OTTI through earnings, a memortized cost basis is established for the sgcanitl subsequent recoveries in fair value
may not be adjusted through earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends toaseilinpaired security or will more-likely-tharet be required to sell an impaired sect
before recovery, the Company makes judgments threider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent anditglto hold the investments that are deemed ingghirThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioesbhaised on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, teednination of OTTI, its timing and amount, is éd®n estimates that may change materially
over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewtaf tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futuesfprmance of the underlying
securities or mortgage loans, including timing xjpected future cash flows, prepayment rates, defatds, loss severities, delinquency rates,
percentage of non-performing loans, extent of ¢r=afpport available, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FIG®&Cores at loan origination, year of
origination, loan-to-value ratios, geographic cartcations, as well as reports by credit rating &ges) such as Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., Standard & Poor’s Rating Services or FitchifRgs, Inc., general market assessments and dialegth market participants. As a result,
substantial judgment is used in the Company’s @matp determine the expected cash flows for itsBSM

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHGredit Quality involves comparing the presertigaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost@Eecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value ¢
expected future cash flows is based on the se@ugffective interest rate as calculated under 83GQ-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in
the security as of the last measurement datejhelpresent value of the remaining cash flows etgoketo be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis, an OTTI is recognized iniagaifor the difference. This amount is considdrede the credit loss component; the
remaining difference between amortized cost andainezalue of the security is considered to bentha<credit component of the OTTI, whi
is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through easrfor the credit loss component, a new amortizest lsasis is established for the security
and subsequent recoveries in fair value may netdjiested through earnings.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingzhwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thle amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e e@vchanges in either the amount or timing of das¥s from those previously expected).

The other-than-temporary impairment is separateddrcredit loss component that is recognized iniegs and a non-credit component that
is recorded in other comprehensive income (lodsg. dredit component is comprised of the impacheffair value decline due to changes in
assumptions related to default (collection) risk @arepayments. The non-credit component compriseshange in fair value of the security
due to all other factors, including changes in Ibemark interest rates and market liquidity. In deteing the OTTI related to credit losses
securities, the Company compares the present eéline remaining cash flows expected to be coltbetethe current financial reporting date
to the present value of the remaining cash flowseeted to be collected at the original purchase @atthe last date those estimates were
revised for accounting purposes). The discouetuaed to calculate the present value of expeatedef cash flows is the effective interest
rate used for income recognition purposes as d@techunder ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.




Following the recognition of an OTTI through eamérfor the credit component, a new amortized casishis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not bessaljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttteat are subsequent increases in cash
flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previousigorded through earnings may be accreted indwdast income following the guidance in
ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is sulifesignificant judgment and management’
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s
estimates of the future performance and projeateauat and timing of cash flows expected to be ctdlé on the security. As a result, the
timing and amount of OTTI constitutes an accounésgimate that may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in interest-only (“IO”) Agerayd Non-Agency RMBS. These IO RMBS represent the@my’s right to receive a
specified proportion of the contractual interestM$ of the collateral. The Company has accountetCfdRMBS at fair value with changes in
fair value recognized in the CompasyConsolidated Statements of Operations and Corapsére Income. The Company has elected the
value option to account for IO RMBS to simplify treporting of changes in fair value. The IO RMBE8 mcluded in RMBS, at fair value,
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Finb@andition. Coupon income on IO RMBS is accrbaded on the outstanding notio
balance and the security’s contractual terms, amafization is computed in accordance with ASC 3P5-Changes in fair value are
presented in Net unrealized gains (losses) ondastamly RMBS on the Consolidated Statement of &gpmrs and Comprehensive

Income. Interest income reported on IO securitias $7.7 million and $6.6 million for the quartereded June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011,
respectively. Interest income reported on 10 s@esrwas $13.7 million and $14.2 million for the& snonths ended June 30, 2012 and June
30, 2011, respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relagd Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratedoaviortgage loans are designated as
held for investment, and are carried at their ppialcbalance outstanding, plus any premiums, lesdnts and allowances for loan

losses. Interest income on loans held for investriserecognized over the life of the investmenhgshe interest method. Income
recognition is suspended for loans when, basedformation from the servicer, a full recovery o€éme and principal becomes

doubtful. Income recognition is resumed when tanlbecomes contractually current and performanderonstrated to be resumed. The
Company estimates the fair value of securitizedddar disclosure purposes only as described i Saif these consolidated financial
statements.

(g) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loansétd for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prirhaief non-conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbeinge loans that are r
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or inter8stcuritized loans are serviced and modified byird-party servicer. The Company is
involved in the loan modification process, exceptiarelates to the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2@IR+2 securitization vehicle
consolidated by the Company that are collateraligedesidential mortgage loans. As it relateslgdle CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-
CIM2, the Company has the ability to approve cartaan modifications and determine the course tibado be taken as it relates to loan
technical default, including whether or not to pred with foreclosure.




The Company has established an allowance for lossek related to securitized loans that is compoEadyeneral and specific reserve.
general reserve relates to loans that have not hedinidually evaluated for impairment and is acoted for under ASC 45
Contingencies The general reserve is based on historicalfatgs for pools of loans with similar credit chaesistics, adjusted for curre
trends and conditions.

Certain loans are individually evaluated for impant, including securitized loans modified by teevicer and loans more than 60 days
delinquent under ASC 31®eceivables Loan modifications made by the servicer areustald to determine if they constitute troubled debt
restructurings (“TDRs"). A restructuring of a loaonstitutes a TDR if the servicer, for economidegial reasons related to the borrower's
financial difficulties, grants a concession to Hmerower that it would not otherwise consider. linpent of modified loans considered to be
TDRs is measured based on the present value ot&xpeash flows discounted at the loan’s effedtiterest rate at inception. If the present
value of expected cash flows is less than the deszbmvestment in the loan, a provision for loassks is recognized through an allowance
with a corresponding charge to provision for loassks. Impairment of all other loans individualleiated is measured as the difference
between the unpaid principal balance and the etwifrfair value of the collateral, less estimatest€®o sell. The Company charges off the
corresponding loan allowance and related prindijpéance when the servicer reports a realized fosemplete discussion of securitized lo
held for investment is included in Note 4 to théeancial statements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifigaortion of its Agency mortgage-backed securitih repurchase agreements. The
Company examines each of the specified criter@3& 860,Transfers and ServicingASC 860”), at the inception of each transactiowl a
has determined that each of the Company’s repuechgieements meet the specified criteria in thidagice to be accounted for as secured
borrowings. None of the Company’s repurchase agee&srare accounted for as components of linkedacions. As a result, the Company
separately accounts for the financial assets pest@dllateral and related repurchase agreemetiie mmccompanying consolidated financial
statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans He for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmation of its residential mortgage loan and RMB&folios. Certain transactions
involving residential mortgage loans are accouidecs secured borrowings, and are recorded asutieed loans held for investment” and
the corresponding debt as “Securitized debt, |behd for investment” in the Consolidated StatemeftSinancial Condition. These
securitizations are collateralized by residentijlistable or fixed rate mortgage loans that hawemlptaced in a trust and pay interest and
principal to the debt holders of that securitizatidRe-securitization transactions classified axctiitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIES” reflect the tfansgo a trust of fixed or adjustable rate RMBS ebhare classified as “Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIEs” that pay intesesd principal to the debt holders of that re-siization. Re-securitization transactions
completed by the Company that did not qualify aala are accounted for as secured borrowings pursm@&SC 860. For the six months
ended June 30, 2012, the Company did not have@minaing involvement with any loans or securiigsviously sold, except as it relates to
the loans in the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CBé2uritizations as further described above. Theens of securitized debt have no
recourse to the Company and the Company does e&ivecany interest or principal paid on such déts.of June 30, 2012 and December
2011 the Company recorded $2.6 billion and $1®hilin principal on securitized debt and accrustgriest payable, respectively. The
associated securitized debt is carried at amortpstl The Company estimates the fair value cfdtairitized debt for disclosure purposes as
described in Note 5 to these consolidated finarstatements.

(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdtie Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5
to these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s policies permit it to enter into #gative contracts, including interest rate swapsiatetest rate caps, as a means of managing
its interest rate risk. The Company intends toint@est rate derivative instruments to manageésteate risk rather than to enhance

returns. Interest rate swaps are recorded ag @isisets or liabilities in the Consolidated Statetmef Financial Condition and measured at
fair value. Net payments on interest rate swapsranluded in the Consolidated Statements of Céshdas a component of net income
(loss). Unrealized gains (losses) on interestsai@ps are removed from net income (loss) to aaivaash flows from operating activities.

The Company estimates the fair value of interdst sevaps as described in Note 5 of these consetidatancial statements.
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The Company elects to net by counterparty thevigine of interest rate swap contracts. These aotsticontain legally enforceable provisi
that allow for netting or setting off of all indial swaps receivable and payable with each cquantgrand, therefore, the fair value of those
swap contracts are reported net by counterparhe cfedit support annex provisions of the Compaimj&rest rate swap contracts allow the
parties to mitigate their credit risk by requirithge party which is in a net payable position totpadlateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swaiptiacts, it also nets by counterparty any colidtexchanged as part of the interest rate swap
contracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionaich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on
sales of assets are computed on the average ctimidnghereby the Company records a gain or losk@uifference between the average
value of the asset and the proceeds from the saladdition, the Company from time to time sednei$ or re-securitizes assets and sells
tranches in the newly securitized assets. Thassdctions may be recorded as either a sale amgslets contributed to the securitization are
removed from the Consolidated Statements of Fisd@ndition and a gain or loss is recognized,soa aecured borrowing whereby the
assets contributed to the securitization are natadgnized but rather the debt issued by the dexaiidn are recorded to reflect the term
financing of the assets. In these securitizatamtsre-securitizations, the Company may retainosenisubordinated interests in the
securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company elected to be taxed as a REIT, andftirerit generally will not be subject to corportdderal or state income tax to the extent
that qualifying distributions are made to stockleotdand the REIT requirements, including certagegsncome, distribution and stock
ownership tests are met. If the Company failedualify as a REIT and did not qualify for certaimtsitory relief provisions, the Company
would be subject to federal, state and local inctames and may be precluded from qualifying as BTR& the subsequent four taxable ye
following the year in which the REIT qualificatiavas lost. The Company and CIM Trading made a jeliettion to treat CIM Trading as a
TRS. As such, CIM Trading is taxable as a doméstimrporation and subject to federal, state, andllmcome taxes based upon its taxable
income.

The provisions of ASC 740ncome Taxe§'ASC 740", clarify the accounting for uncertairityincome taxes recognized in financial
statements and prescribe a recognition threshaldragasurement attribute for tax positions takeexpected to be taken on a tax return. The
Company does not have any unrecognized tax betleditsvould affect its financial position. The Coamy has not taken any tax positions
that would require disclosure under ASC 740. Nwr@als for penalties and interest were necessany &sne 30, 2012 or December 31, 2(

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shadévliling net income for the period by the basiighted-average shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments, such as unvested restricted
stock, but uses the average share price for thedigr determining the number of incremental sh#hes are to be added to the diluted
weighted average number of shares outstanding.

(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&fgiates in accordance with
ASC 505-50Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employ¢ASC 505-50"). Pursuant to ASC 5@® the Company measures the fair value o
equity instrument using the stock prices and otheasurement assumptions as of the earlier of dlileedtate at which a performance
commitment by the recipient is reached or the datehich the recipient’s performance is completempPensation expense related to the
grants of stock is recognized over the vestinggaeoif such grants based on the fair value of theksbn each quarterly vesting date, at which
the recipient’s performance is complete.
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The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the Company’s independent direatoaccordance with ASC 718,
Compensation — Stock CompensafkSC 718"). Compensation expense for equity bamedrds granted to the Company’s independent
directors is recognized pro-rata over the vestiagog of such awards, based upon the fair valisioh awards at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andalisce of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Although the Compasigstimates contemplate current conditions
how it expects them to change in the future, ieessonably possible that actual conditions coulthaterially different than anticipated in
those estimates, which could have a material advierpact on the Company'’s results of operationsi@nfihancial condition. Management
has made significant estimates in accounting foonme recognition and OTTI on Agency and Non-AgeR&BS and IO RMBS (Note 3),
valuation of Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 8 &i and interest rate swaps (Notes 5 and 9)uaheesults could differ materially
from those estimates.

(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentation

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accouiagdards Update (“ASU”) 2011-1Ralance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and LiabilitiesUnder this update, the Company will be requicedisclose both gross information and net inforarat
about both instruments and transactions eligibl®ffset in the statement of financial position darahsactions subject to an agreement sir
to a master netting arrangement. The scope waoualdde derivatives, sale and repurchase agreerardteeverse sale and repurchase
agreements and securities borrowing and seculéieing arrangements. This disclosure is intertdezhable financial statement users to
understand the effect of such arrangements on ¢hep@nys financial position. The objective of this updetéo support further convergen
between U.S. GAAP and International Financial ReépgrStandards (“IFRS”)This update is effective for annual reporting pdsibeginnini
on or after January 1, 2013. This update is exgett result in additional disclosure.

Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In June 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011a@mprehensive Income: Presentation of Comprehehsooene, which attempts to improve
the comparability, consistency, and transparendinahcial reporting and increase the prominenciéeniis reported in Other Comprehensive
Income (“OCI"). ASU 2011-05 requires that all nowner changes in stockholders’ equity be presesitbér in a single continuous
statement of net income and comprehensive incom@mseparate consecutive statements. Either miasan requires the presentation on
the face of the financial statements any reclasgifin adjustments for items that are reclassifiech OCI to net income in the

statements. There is no change in what must lmetezhin OCI or when an item of OCI must be redfasbto net income. This update is
effective for fiscal years, and interim periodshiitthose years, beginning after December 15, 20tk Company adopted the provisions of
ASU 2011-05 effective January 1, 2012. Adoptio8lU 2011-05 did not have a significant impact lo@ Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

On December 23, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 201Lbiprehensive Income: Deferral of Effective Datedimendments to the
Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Outafulnulated Other Comprehensive Income In ASU NHl-05, which defers those changes
in ASU 2011-05 that relate to the presentatiorecfassification adjustments out of accumulated Q@is was done to allow the FASB time
to re-deliberate the presentation, on the fac@@fihancial statements, of the effects of recfaesgions out of accumulated OCI on the
components of net income and OCI. No other requergs under ASU 2011-05 are affected by ASU 2011H&SB tentatively decided not
to require presentation of reclassification adjwesits out of accumulated other comprehensive incamtbe face of the financial statements
and to propose new disclosures instead.
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In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20133@Mprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Refieg$ut of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive IncomeThis update addresses the disclosure issuedeft at the deferral under ASU 2011-12. This updeqeires the
provision of information about the amounts reclésgiout of accumulated OCI by component. In additit requires presentation, either on
the face of the statement where net income is pteder in the Notes, significant amounts recléasgibut of accumulated OCI by the
respective line items of net income but only if #mount reclassified is required under U.S. GAABdaeclassified to net income in its
entirety in the same reporting period. For otheoants that are not required under U.S. GAAP todetassified in their entirety to net
income, a cross-reference must be provided to alisetosures required under U.S. GAAP that prowdditional detail about those amounts.
This update is effective for reporting periods Imeging after December 15, 2012. Adoption of ASU 2023s not expected to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financiatsments.

Broad Transactions

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820)

In May 2011, the FASB released ASU 2011-B4dir Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S.Re#l IFRSfurther converging U.S. GAAP and IFRS by providognmon fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements.BFA&le changes to the fair value measurement geedavhich include: 1) prohibiting
the inclusion of block discounts in all fair valmeasurements, not just Level 1 measurements, 2)@ddidance on when to include other
premiums and discounts in fair value measuremesjtgjarifying that the concepts of “highest andthgse” and “valuation premise” apply
only when measuring the fair value of non-finaneisgets and 4) adding an exception that allowsresurement of a group of financial
assets and liabilities with offsetting risks (eayportfolio of derivative contracts) at their eseposure to a particular risk if certain criteria a
met. ASU 201104 also requires additional disclosure relatedeim$ categorized as Level 3 in the fair value nidmg including a descriptic
of the processes for valuing these assets, prayiglirantitative information about the significanbbseervable inputs used to measure fair
value and, in certain cases, explaining the seitgitf the fair value measurements to changessbgervable inputs. This update is
effective for reporting periods beginning after Beter 15, 2011. Adoption of ASU 2011-04 increadedfdotnote disclosure in these
consolidated financial statements.

Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860)

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-03ansfers and Servicing: Reconsideration of Effec€ontrol for Repurchase Agreements

a typical repurchase agreement transaction, aty érgnsfers financial assets to the counterpargxichange for cash with an agreement for
the counterparty to return the same or equivaleantial assets for a fixed price in the futuregioPto this update, one of the factors in
determining whether sale treatment could be usedwirether the transferor maintained effective @mf the transferred assets and, in order
to do so, the transferor must have the abilityefmurchase such assets. In connection with theriseuat ASU 2011-03, the FASB concluded
that the assessment of effective control shouldsam a transferor’'s contractual rights and ohidgest with respect to transferred financial
assets, rather than whether the transferor hgwr#totical ability to perform in accordance with skeaights or obligations. ASU 2011-03
removes the transferor’s ability criterion from sateration of effective control. This update ifeefive for the first interim or annual period
beginning on or after December 15, 2011. As them@any records repurchase agreements as securesvbb@s and not sales, this update
has no significant effect on the Company’s conswéd financial statements.

Financial Services Investment Companies (Topic 946)

In June 2013, the FASB finalized ASU 2013-08 amegdhe scope, measurement and disclosure requitemeder Topic 946 — Financial
Services-Investment Companies. The Board decidetbraddress issues related to the applicabifitpv@stment company accounting for
real estate entities and the measurement of regbaavestments at this time. Further, as statéSC 946-10-15-3, the guidance in Topic
946 does not apply to real estate investment trasts thus has no effect on the Company’s congelidinancial statements.
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3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as sesinior interest-only, subordinated, subordinatéetest-only, and Non-Agency
RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs. The Compaley invests in Agency RMBS. Senior interestiiam-Agency RMBS are considered
to be entitled to the first principal repaymentghiair pro-rata ownership interests at the repgrtiate. The total fair value of the Négency
RMBS that are held by the re-securitization trestssolidated pursuant to ASC 810 was $3.2 billiod $3.3 billion at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, respectively. See Note 8 sktlensolidated financial statements for furthecuasion of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or npibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,
gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gazss)(felated to the Company’s available-for-saleBS\portfolio as of June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, by asset class.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross Net
Principal ot Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Gain/
Value Premiunr  Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 7€ $ -8 (55 $ 662 $ 665 $ 2 $ - $ 2
Senior intere-only 4,082,591 207,95 - 207,95 210,50! 19,17¢ (16,630 2,54¢
Subordinate 1,344,61. - (702,23) 642,37! 640,42! 50,951 (52,907 (1,950
Subordinated interest-
only 271,41¢ 18,77 - 18,77 20,61 1,83¢ - 1,83¢
RMBS transferred to
consolidated variable
interest
entities ("VIES") 4,991,19 9,79C (2,286,57) 2,613,46! 3,151,80 547,81 (9,479 538,33t
Agency RMBS 2,652,07! 79,10: (14S) 2,659,66  2,779,23 120,06: (497 119,57.
Total $13,342,61 $315,62: $(2,989,01) $6,142,90. $6,803,25. $ 739,85( $ (79,50) $ 660,34¢
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Gross Net
Principal ot Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Gain/
Value Premiunr  Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 1,11 $ - % (56) $ 1,05¢ $ 1,02 $ 2 % 41 $ (39
Senior intere-only 3,734,45; 199,28t - 199,28t 188,67¢ 11,30¢ (21,919 (10,609
Subordinates 1,378,89. - (724,739 654,15: 606,89! 30,991 (78,259 (47,25
Subordinated interest-
only 277,56( 21,91( - 21,91( 22,01¢ 1,66: (1,559 10¢
RMBS transferred to
consolidated variable
interest
entities ("VIES") 5,265,12! 19,86¢ (2,382,99) 2,902,00. 3,270,33 420,50! (52,17 368,33(
Agency RMBS 3,018,34 90,401 (15%) 3,027,28! 3,144,53 117,60: (35E) 117,24¢
Total $13,675,49 $331,47( $(3,107,94) $6,805,691 $7,233,471 $ 582,07t $ (154,290 $ 427,78(

The table below presents changes in AccretabledY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgquieto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201  June 30, 201 June 30,201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousand:
Balance at beginning of peri $ 2,300,871 $ 2,398,72. $ 2,342,46. $ 2,521,72
Purchase - 28,44° 86,841 91,68(
Accretion (92,339 (94,785 (187,44() (191,210
Reclassification (to) from n«accretable differenc 26,24 253,10! 14,58¢ 210,67*
Sales - - (21,667 (47,380
Balance at end of peric $ 2,234,779, $ 258548 $ 2,23479. $ 258548

The table below presents the outstanding prindipkdnce and related carrying amount at the beginai ending of the quarterly peric



ending June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 agdipeto the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolazaunted for according to the
provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende
December 31,

June 30, 201 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of perioc $ 5,065,38 $ 5,264,48!

End of perioc $ 4,878,47' $ 5,245,18.
Carrying value

Beginning of perioc $ 2,553,21! $ 2,761,67:

End of perioc $ 2,420,50; $ 2,649,30:
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The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the CompaRWIBS by length of time that such securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss positidiine 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011. All sgesiin an unrealized loss position have
been evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discuissBote 2(d).

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Unrealized Loss Position for Less Unrealized Loss Position for 12

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate: Estimate!
Number Number Number
Fair Unrealize« of Fair Unrealizet of Estimated Unrealize« of
Value Losses Securitie!  Value Losses Securitie: Fair Value Losses  Securitie
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % - - % - % - - 3 - 9% = =
Senior intere-only 17,85:¢ (5,437 8 48,35: (11,199 18 66,20¢ (16,63() 26
Subordinatec 7,79¢€ (2,350 1 249,18: (51,559 23 256,97 (52,90°) 24
Subordinated intere-only - - - - - - - - -
RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs - - - 139,89! (9,479 6 139,89! (9,479 6
Agency RMBS 3,47( (497) 2 - - - 3,47( (497) 2
Total $ 29,11¢ $ (7,279 11 $437,42( $ (72,229 47 $ 466,54 $ (79,50 58
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position for Les  Unrealized Loss Position for 12
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate: Estimate!
Number Number Number
Fair Unrealizel of Fair Unrealizet of Estimatec Unrealize« of
Value Losses  Securitie! Value Losses  Securitie: Fair Value Losses  Securitie
Nonr-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % - - % 127 $ (42) 1 3 127 $ (41) 1
Senior intere-only 99,35: (18,75¢) 26 17,647 (3,16)) 12 116,99¢ (21,917 38
Subordinatec 321,41¢ (52,829 33 111,16 (25,43() 17 432,58: (78,259 5C
Subordinated intere-only 16,30( (1,559 2 - - - 16,30( (1,559 2
RMBS transferred to consolidat
VIEs - - - 594,36 (52,179 18 594,36¢ (52,179 18
Agency RMBS 3,88¢ (355) 2 - - - 3,88¢ (355) 2
Total $440,95¢ $ (73,489 63 $723,31( $ (80,80) 48 $1,164,26! $ (154,290 111

At June 30, 2012, the Company did not intend tbasef of its RMBS that were in an unrealized lossipon, and it was not more likely than
not that the Company would be required to selle¢iRBIBS before recovery of their amortized costfashich may be at their maturity. W
respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, theitghif any entity to cause the sale by the VIE ptthe maturity of these RMBS is either
expressly prohibited, not probable, or is limitedspecified events of default, none of which haseuored to date.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agency 8MBre $491 thousand and $355 thousand at Jur2®3P,and December 31, 2011,
respectively. Given the credit quality inherenfigency RMBS, the Company does not consider anii@ttirrent impairments on its Agency
RMBS to be credit related. In evaluating whettiés more likely than not that it will be requiréal sell any impaired security before its
anticipated recovery, which may be at their maguthhe Company considers the significance of eaghstment, the amount of impairment,
the projected future performance of such impaiesmigties, as well as the Company’s current anitigated leverage capacity and liquidity
position. Based on these analyses, the Companynuats that at June 30, 2012 and December 31, @0falized losses on its Agency
RMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (including Non-Agency RMBS held by consoligdtVIEs) were $79.0 million
and $153.9 million at June 30, 2012 and Decembgl@11, respectively. Based upon the most recaltation, the Company does not
consider these unrealized losses to be indicafi@Td | and does not believe that these unrealinedds are credit related, but rather are due
to non-credit related factors. The Company haskesd its Non-Agency RMBS that are in an unrealipad position to identify those
securities with losses that are other-than-temgdrased on an assessment of changes in cash fkpested to be collected for such RMBS,
which considers recent bond performance and exgdatere performance of the underlying collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters and six months ended June 30, 2012 aridi@@tesented below.
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For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (12,479 $ (57,92¢)
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (53,219 (4,249
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (65,687 $ (62,170

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (44,55) $ (82,979
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (69,500 (12,379
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (11405) $ (95,359

The following table presents a roll forward of ttredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Maency RMBS for which a nonredi
component of OTTI was previously recognized in ottemprehensive income. The table delineates lestil®se securities that are
recognizing OTTI for the first time as opposedhode that have previously recognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201  June 30, 201
(dollars in thousands

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 493,900 $ 266,90!
Additions:
Othe-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 58,10: 55,82¢
Reductions for securities sold during the pe - (85)
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsion securities with previously recognized cther
thar-temporary impairment 7,58¢ 6,34
Reductions for increases in cash flows expedadxktcollected that are recognized over the remgilifie
of the security (18,92¢) (86,345
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 540,65¢ $ 242,64

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 452,06( $ 237,74¢
Additions:
Othe-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 89,92¢ 77,82:
Reductions for securities sold during the pe (290 (1,262
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsion securities with previously recognized ather
thar-temporary impairment 24,12 17,53:
Reductions for increases in cash flows expedaduktcollected over the remaining life of the siéme (25,167) (89,18%)
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 540,65¢ $ 242 ,64!

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized inieggare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs useshéasure the component of OTTI recognized in egenfor the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:
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For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201  June 30, 201

Loss Severity

Weighted Averag: 58% 52%

Range 45%- 86% 40%- 78%
60+ days delinquet

Weighted Averag 28% 23%

Range 9% - 53% 0% - 55%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag: 10% 23%

Range 0%- 75% 0% - 88%
3 Month CPR

Weighted Averag 16% 16%

Range 3%- 30% 4% - 56%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 16% 17%

Range 8% - 25% 7%- 31%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemahetReREMIC and underlyin
from each of their respective capital structu

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at June 30, 2012 and Decemp20BL Interestnly RMBS include
in the tables below represent the right to recaigpecified proportion of the contractual intersh flows of the underlying principal balai
of specific securities. At June 30, 2012, intexmdy RMBS had a net unrealized gain of $9.7 milland had an amortized cost of $241.8
million. At December 31, 2011, interest-only RMB&dha net unrealized loss of $5.7 million and hadmwortized cost of $237.8

million. The fair value of IOs at June 30, 2012ld&ecember 31, 2011 was $251.6 million, and $284llion, respectively.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Gross Unrealized
Loss Included in

Gross Unrealized
Gain Included in

Accumulated

Gross Unrealized

Accumulated

Gross Unrealized

Other Gain Included in Total Gross Other Loss Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniot $ 2 % - % 2 $ - % - % -
Senior interest-
only - 19,17¢ 19,17¢ - (16,630 (16,630
Subordinate: 50,957 - 50,95° (52,90°) - (52,907
Subordinated
interest-
only - 1,83¢ 1,83¢ - - -
RMBS transferre
to
consolidated VIE 541,99: 5,81¢ 547,81: (9,479 - (9,479
Agency RMBS 120,03¢ 27 120,06: - (491 (491
Total $ 71298 $ 26,86 $ 739,85( $ (62,380 $ (17,12) $ (79,507)
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Unrealizel Gross Unrealizes
Gain Included in Loss Included in
Accumulated Gross Unrealize Accumulated Gross Unrealize:
Other Gain Included in Total Gross Other Loss Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Loss
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 2 $ - 3 2 % (41) $ - 3 (47)
Senior interest-
only - 11,30¢ 11,30¢ - (21,919 (21,919
Subordinate: 30,997 - 30,99° (78,259 - (78,259



Subordinated

interest-
only - 1,66: 1,66: - (1,554 (1,554
RMBS transferre
to
consolidated VIE 415,68¢ 4,817 420,50! (52,179 - (52,179
Agency RMBS 117,23¢ 36E 117,60: - (35E) (35E)
Total $ 563,92. $ 18,15! $ 582,07¢ $ (130,470 $ (23,82¢) $ (154,29¢)

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfltagt expected to be collected, among other itars affected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The portfolioost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency RMBith credit risk. The Company
chooses assets for the portfolio after carefullgle@ating each investment’s risk profile.
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The following tables provide a summary of the Comps RMBS portfolio at June 30, 2012 and Decemtier2®11.

June 30, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted
Value at Weighted Average
Period-End Average Weighted Weighted Yield at
(dollars in Amortized Average Fai Average Period-End
thousands Cost Basis Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 71 $ 92.3¢ $ 92.7( 1.01% 4.1%%
Senior, interest onl $ 4,08259 $ 50¢ $ 5.1¢€ 1.97% 13.2¢%
Subordinate $ 1,34461 $ 4771 % 47.6¢ 3.24% 10.66%
Subordinated, interest on $ 271,410 % 6.9z $ 7.5¢ 2.6€% 6.1%
RMBS transferred to consolidated variable interest
entities $ 499119 $ 53.4s $ 64.4~ 5.1(% 15.1%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie $ 2,652,077 $ 103.0¢ $ 107.6¢ 4.65% 3.7¢%
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted
Value at Weighted Average
Period-End Average Weighted Weighted Yield at
(dollars in Amortized Average Fai Average Period-End
thousands Cost Basit Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 1,11 $ 95.1: $ 91.5¢ 1.02% 2.95%
Senior, interest onl $ 3,734,445 $ 534 $ 5.0t 1.9€% 13.2¢%
Subordinatet $ 1,378,89 $ 474 % 44.01 3.44% 9.57%
Subordinated, interest on $ 277,56( $ 78¢ $ 7.92 2.9% 9.92%
RMBS transferred to consolidated variable interest
entities $ 5,265,120 $ 55.1¢ $ 62.11 5.32% 14.56%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie $ 3,01834 % 103.0° $ 107.0¢ 4.6€% 3.85%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availabfehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

June 30, 201December 3:

2011
AAA 0.00% 0.53%
AA 0.58% 0.14%
A 0.19% 0.45%
BBB 1.18% 1.54%
BB 0.34% 0.00%
B 2.78% 0.43%
Below B or not ratel 94.93% 96.91%
Total 100.00¥ 100.00¥

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemthiae stated contractual maturities. Actual méagiof the Compang’ RMBS are affecte
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal and prepaymehtwiacipal. The following tables
provide a summary of the fair value and amortizest of the Company’s RMBS at June 30, 2012 and ibee 31, 2011 according to their
estimated weighted-average life classificationke Weighted-average lives of the RMBS in the tabkdew are based on lifetime expected
prepayment rates using an industry prepayment nfod#éie Agency RMBS portfolio and the Company’sgayment assumptions for the
Non-Agency RMBS. The prepayment model considers cusiiefd, forward yield, steepness of the interas¢ rcurve, current mortgage ra
mortgage rates of the outstanding loan, loan agegim and volatility.
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater tha

five
years and
Greater than one less Greater tha
Less than year and less than  than ten ten
one yeal five years years years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 665 $ - $ - $ - $ 665
Senior intere-only 5,12 136,91« 67,99( 47¢ 210,50¢!
Subordinatet 44,51¢ 248,79t 331,21: 15,89¢ 640,42!
Subordinated intere-only - - 18,86" 1,745 20,61z
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 18,61 329,87 2,496,77! 306,55 3,151,80
Agency RMBE 3,47( 2,775,76! - - 2,779,23!
Total fair value $ 72,38t $ 3,491,35. $ 2,914,83 $ 324,671 $ 6,803,25
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 66: $ -9 - $ -3 665
Senior intere-only 6,73t 135,26¢ 65,49 462 207,95
Subordinatet 41,62« 254,92: 329,98t 15,84 642,37!
Subordinated intere-only - - 17,14 1,631 18,77:
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 17,37( 287,60¢ 2,029,58I 278,91: 2,613,46!
Agency RMBS 3,96( 2,655,70 - - 2,659,66'
Total amortized cos $ 70,35 $ 3,333,650 $ 2,442,20. $ 296,84 $ 6,142,90
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Li
Greater thal
five
years and
Greater than one less Greater tha
Less than year and less than  than ten ten
one yeal five years years years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 89z $ - % 126 $ - $ 1,02(
Senior intere-only - 85,63 69,20« 33,84 188,67
Subordinatet 6,53( 101,98: 259,54¢ 238,83 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only - - 1,812 20,20" 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 25,37t 338,61t 2,119,083 787,31: 3,270,33.
Agency RMBE 17,93: 1,735,10 824,64! 566,84 3,144,53.
Total fair value $ 50,72¢ $ 2,261,33' § 3,274,36i $ 1,647,04 $ 7,233,47
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 891 $ -9 16€ $ - $ 1,05¢
Senior intere=-only - 95,97« 69,95 33,36 199,28t
Subordinatet 5,61¢ 98,65’ 300,48 249,39( 654,15:
Subordinated intere-only - - 1,94¢ 19,96¢ 21,91
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 32,80¢ 296,14 1,827,00! 746,05:. 2,902,00:
Agency RMBE 17,61( 1,663,91 798,63: 547,12t 3,027,28!
Total amortized cos $ 56,92 $ 2,154,69; $ 2,998,18' $ 1,595,89. $ 6,805,69

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdxy what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. The Company
categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whethe loans were originally described as “prinféhé behavior of the collateral when the
Company purchased the security more typically rédesnAli-A. The Company defines /A collateral characteristics to be evidenced by



60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool being girethizn 5% and the weighted average FICO scordwedinhe of origination as greater than
650. At June 30, 2012, 97.6% of the Non-Agency FavBllateral was Alt-A. At December 31, 2011, 9%.4f the Non-Agency RMBS
collateral was Alt-A.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fallog collateral characteristics at June 30, 201® Bacember 31, 2011.
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December 31,

June 30, 201 2011
Weighted average maturity (yea 25.4 25.7
Weighted average amortized loan to value 71.6% 71.5%
Weighted average FICO ( 717.¢ 718.¢
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 448.1 $ 469.(
Weighted average percentage owner occu 84.% 85.2%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 64.8% 65.6%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 3.6% 4.5%
Weighted average geographic concentration of topdtate: CA 36.1% CA 38.1%

FL 8.7% FL 8.5%
NY 6.4% NY 6.1%
NJ 2.™% NJ 2.7™%
MD 24% VA 2.4%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the colhta the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efitthderlying loans related to the Company’s padfof Non-Agency RMBS at June 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011.

Origination Year June 30, 201 December 3:

2011

2001 0.2% 0.2%

2003 1.2% 0.9%

2004 1.7% 1.3%

2005 12.7% 13.8%

2006 34.3% 31.8%

2007 46.9% 48.7%

2008 3.0% 3.3%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012, the Compadyno sales of RMBS. During the quarter endee B0, 2011, the Company sold
RMBS with a carrying value of $23.1 million for feed losses of $913 thousand. During the six meetided June 30, 2012, the Company
sold RMBS with a carrying value of $63.0 milliorrfiealized gains of $16.0 million. During the sionths ended June 30, 2011, the
Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $666i8iom for realized gains of $1.7 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beiagfiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizwhole mortgage loans. Refer to Note
8 for additional details regarding the Companyinement with VIEs.

The securitized loans held for investment are edrait their principal balance outstanding, plusnordized premiums, less unaccreted
discounts and an allowance for loan losses. Duhiegjuarter ended June 30, 2012, the Company lidaisal the CSMC 2012IM2 Trust, ¢
securitization collateralized by high quality, jumlprime, residential mortgage loans. The Compeansferred $425.1 million in principal
value to the CSMC 2012-CIM2 Trust that was recorde@ secured borrowing pursuant to ASC 860. isntthnsaction, the Company
financed $404.3 million of AAA-rated, AA-rated, aidrated fixed rate bonds by selling the bondshirdtparty investors for net proceeds of
$405.4 million.

The following table provides a summary of the ctemnigp the carrying value of securitized loans Hietdnvestment at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011:
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December 3:

June 30, 201 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 256,63. $ 349,11
Purchase 1,185,66. -
Principal paydown (114,149 (85,52¢)
Net periodic amortization (accretio (6,146 (1,669
Change to loan loss provisit 892 (5,29
Balance, end of peric $ 1,322,89 $ 256,63:

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as falthvestment at June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011:

December 3:
June 30, 201 2011

(dollars in thousands
Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 1,334,411 $ 270,57(
Less: allowance for loan loss 11,52 13,93¢
Securitized loans held for investm $ 1,322,89 $ 256,63:

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizedfmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 9.0% were originated during 2012,
60.8% were originated during 2011, 13.9% during@®@hd the remaining 16.3% of the loans were caigid prior to 2010. A summary of
key characteristics of these loans follows.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2011
Number of loan: 1,57¢ 392
Weighted average maturity (yea 28.t 25.¢
Weighted average loan to value 71.2% 75.5%
Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 752
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 835.% $ 684.(
Weighted average percentage owner occu 94.4% 91.1%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 66.2% 58.1%
Weighted average geographic concentration of topdtate: CA 40.% CA 36.(%

NY 8.£% FL 6.1%
WA 7.C% AZ 5.8&%
VA 4.5% NJ 5.4%

NJ 4.C% IL 5.2%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the colhta the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized mag&gkan portfolio for the six months
ended June 30, 2012 and year ended December 31, 201

For the Six For the Year

Months Ended
Ended June 30, December 31,

2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 13,93¢ $ 11,00¢
Provision for loan losse (892 5,291
Chargeoffs (1,529 (2,359
Balance, end of peric $ 11,52: $ 13,93¢

The Company has established an allowance for losseb related to securitized loans that is composadjeneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relataétiéaeneral reserve at June 30, 2012 and Dece3tb2011 was $5.2 million and $6.3
million, respectively. The balance in the allowarfior loan losses related to the specific reserdeiiae 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was
$6.3 million and $7.6 million, respectively.
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The Company'’s overall provision for loan lossedédscribed in Note 2(g). The Company’s generalvesis based on historical loss rates for
pools of loans with similar credit characteristiadjusted for current trends and market conditior@uding current trends in delinquencies
and severities. The Company has established #ispeserve that reflects consideration of loarmrenthan 60 days delinquent, loans in
foreclosure, borrowers that have declared bankyypitd real estate owned. The loan loss provistated to these loans is measured as the
difference between the unpaid principal balancethadstimated fair value of the property secutigmortgage, less estimated costs to
sell. The specific reserve also reflects constitaraf concessions granted to borrowers by theicerin the form of modifications (i.e.,
reductions). Loan loss provisions related to thresdifications are based on the contractual pradcimd interest payments, post-
modification, discounted at the loan’s originalesfiive interest rate.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired & which the Company established a specificrieseas $26.6 million and $32.9 million
at June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respsctiféle Company’s recorded investment in impaioshs for which there is a related
allowance for credit losses at June 30, 2012 argéDbéer 31, 2011 was $19.9 million and $14.3 milli@spectively. The total unpaid
principal balance of non-impaired loans for whibke Company established a general reserve was Bio8 bnd $235.2 million at June 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively. The @oxip recorded investment in loans that are notinepl for which there is a related
general reserve for credit losses at June 30, 28d2December 31, 2011 was $1.3 billion and $228|I8m respectively.

The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and greet reported by the servicer at June
30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent Bankruptcy Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
June 30, 201 $ 1,90¢ $ 527 $ 601 $ 1,65¢ $ 3,85( $ 3,27t $ 11,82:
December 3:
2011 $ 1,34 % 1,82¢ $ 2,33 % 1,65¢ $ 3,62¢ $ 5201 $ 15,99¢

With the exception of its ability to approve loawdifications solely as it relates to CSMC 2012-Cltid CSMC 2012-CIM2 as further
described in Note 2(g), the Company does not seiwienodify loans held for investment. The trusiad servicer of the respective
securitization are responsible for servicing andlifiying these loans. The Company is required t&erzertain assumptions in accounting
loans held for investment due to the limitatiorirdbrmation available to the Company. The follogitable presents the loans that were
modified by the servicer during the six months ehdiene 30, 2012 and 2011.

Amortized Cost o Amortized Cost o
Modified Loans For  Modified Loans For
Unpaid Principal Unpaid Principal Which Which

Number of Loan: Balance Balance There is an There is No

Modified During of Modified Loans of Modified Loans Amortized Cost o Allowance for Allowance for

Period (Pre-modification) (Pos-madification) Modified Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse:

(dollars in thousand:

June 30, 201 6 $ 342, % 353t $ 3,51¢ $ 3,51¢ $ 0
June 30, 201 4 $ 2,47¢  $ 2,65¢ $ 2,68¢ $ 2,68¢ $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methods¥ mitigation. Based on the information availableing the quarter and six months er
June 30, 2012, the Company determined that alsloaodified by the servicer were considered troubdielok restructurings, as defined under
GAAP. A troubled debt restructuring is generally amodification of a loan to a borrower that is esipecing financial difficulties, where a
lender agrees to terms that are more favorableetdorrower than are otherwise available in theetimarket. All loan modifications during
the quarters and six months ended June 30, 2012Gikdincluded a reduction of the stated interasts. Loans modified by the servicer

have been individually assessed for impairmentraadsurement of impairment is based on the excebe oécorded investment in the loan
over the present value of the expected cash flpost, modification, discounted at the loan’s effeeiinterest rate at inception. In the absence
of additional loan modifications by the servicerfuure periods that are considered to be TDR&s &#h.5 million specific reserve related to
TDR'’s as of June 30, 2012 will be recognized ininebme in future periods by way of a decreasé&énprovision for loan losses.
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As of June 30, 2012, one loan with an outstandimgepal balance of approximately $527 thousand wes modified in the past twelve
months was delinquent on its scheduled paymernttss |dan was individually evaluated for impairmant the related allowance for loan I
is based on the excess of the recorded investmeneiloan over the present value of the expedst flows, post modification, discountec
the loan’s effective interest rate at inception.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith U.S. GAAP to account for its financial inshents. The Company categorize:
financial instruments, based on the priority of iguts to the valuation technique, into a thraeesldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liabd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs usecheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value on the consdéthstatements of financial condition or disclosethe related notes are categorized based on
the inputs to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imiglquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukktm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Legk3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
and such changes could result in a significantiase or decrease in the fair value. For the Comgamyestments in Non-Agency RMBS
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hiefay, the significant unobservable inputs include discount rates, assumptions relating to
prepayments, default rates and loss severitiesifieignt increases (decreases) in any of the distaies, default rates or loss severities in
isolation would result in a significantly lower @fier) fair value measurement. The impact of chaigpsepayment speeds would have
differing impacts on fair value, depending on tbaiserity of the investment. Generally, a changthindefault assumption is accompanied by
directionally similar changes in the assumptiorsdu®r the loss severity and the prepayment speed.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtkisy management to ensure the changes are ateopts markets and products

evolve and the pricing for certain products becomesge transparent, the Company will continue tineeits valuation methodologies. The
methodology utilized by the Company for the peripdssented is unchanged. The methods used togeadiair value calculation may not

be indicative of net realizable value or reflectofduture fair values. Furthermore, while the C@np believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market pggits, the use of different methodologies, or agxions, to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in datiént estimate of fair value at the reporting datee Company uses inputs that are current as
of the measurement date, which may include perddsarket dislocation, during which price transpememay be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time and continues to existotigervability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS. If third piy pricing services are unable to provide a pfarean asset, or if the price provided by
them is deemed unreliable by the Company, theiadket will be valued at its fair value as determhing the Company without validation to
third-party pricing. In addition, validating thigghrty pricing for the Companyinvestments may be more subjective as fewerggaatits ma
be willing to provide this service to the Companliquid investments typically experience gregbeice volatility as an active market does
exist. Observability of prices and inputs can wsignificantly from period to period and may causstruments to change classifications
within the three level hierarchy.
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A description of the methodologies utilized by empany to estimate the fair value of its finan@iatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, aeduad interest payable are considered to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value due totliba erm nature of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors
as coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted averagedlfateral composition, borrower characteristegyected interest rates, life caps,
periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasonkpgeoted losses, expected default severity, craetiaecement, and other pertinent factors.
Management reviews the fair values generated bynthael to determine whether prices are reflectivihe current market. Management
indirectly corroborates its estimates of the failue using pricing models by comparing its restdtsidependent prices provided by dealers in
the securities and/or third party pricing servic€ertain very liquid asset classes, such as Agéxregl-rate pass-throughs may be priced
using independent sources such as quoted pric8ofBe-Announced (“TBA”) securities.

The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an actiarket such that participants transact with sigffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing hasie liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and thmiarity of the Company’s securities
to those actively traded enable the Company torebsguoted prices in the market and utilize thaseep as a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfidds&gency RMBS as Level 2 inputs in the fair v@hierarchy.

The Company'’s fair value estimation process for Maency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted @sithat are observed in the market.
The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default avdrity curves all involve Management judgment assumptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting Non-Agency fair valstreates Level 3 inputs in the fair value
hierarchy.

Interest Rate Sway

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determindainealues of its interest rate swaps. The Camypaompares the dealer quotations
received to its own estimate of fair value to easdufor reasonableness. The dealer quotes in@goommon market pricing methods,
including a spread measurement to the Treasurg giglve or interest rate swap curve as well asnlyidg characteristics of the particular
contract. Interest rate swaps are modeled by tmep@ay by incorporating such factors as the termaturity, Treasury curve, LIBOR rates,
and the payment rates on the fixed portion of tiherest rate swaps. The Company has classifietebitRate Swaps as Level 2 inputs in the
fair value hierarchy.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company ¢jaahits discount rate assumption used to deterthméair value of interest rate swaps
from LIBOR to the overnight index swap rate in @sge to changes in market valuation practicestterést rate swaps that are collaterali

The Company'’s financial assets and liabilitiesiedrat fair value on a recurring basis, includihg evel in the fair value hierarchy, at June
30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 is presented below.
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June 30, 201

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % - $ 66¢
Senior intere:-only - - 210,50!
Subordinatet - - 640,42!
Subordinated intere-only - - 20,61:
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,151,80
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 2,779,23 -
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaf - 54,64¢ -
December 31, 201
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - % - $ 1,02(
Senior intere:-only - - 188,67
Subordinatel - - 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only - - 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,270,33.
Agency mortgag-backed securitie - 3,144,53 -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 44,46 -

In the aggregate, the Company’s estimate of thevédue of its RMBS investments was 1.03% lowenttiee aggregate dealer marks as of
June 30, 2012 and 0.72% lower than the aggregai@ermarks as of December 31, 2011. The tabtawbgtovides a summary of the
changes in the fair value of securities classified.evel 3.

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
(dollars in thousand:
For the Six For the Year

Months Endec Ended
December 31,
June 30, 201 2011

Non-Agency RMBS
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 4,088,94! $ 5,529,10!
Transfers in to Level 3 asse¢ - -
Transfers out of Level 3 asst - -
Purchase 116,62° 446,20°

Principal payment (270,079 (695,27

Sales (79,059 (631,64

Accretion of purchase discour 44,43¢ 81,22
Gains (losses) included in net inco

Other than temporary credit impairment los (114,05) (357,109

Realized gains (losses) on s¢ 16,01( 44~

Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 15,88¢ (24,717
Gains (losses) included in other compreherisigeme

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 205,28t (269,299

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 402401 $ 4,088,94!

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 durimg quarter ended June 30, 2012 and the year ersezhiber 31, 2011.
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A summary of the significant inputs used to estarthe fair value of Nomgency RMBS as of June 30, 2012 and December 311, f)lows:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average Prepaymer Cumulative Average Prepaymer Cumulative
Discount Speed Default Loss Discount Speed Default Loss
Rate (CPR) Rate Severity Rate (CPR) Rate Severity
Range Range
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior 4.2% 2%- 1% 0%-22% 50%- 85% 4.2% 1%- 12% 0%- 1% 50%- 85%
Senior intere=-only 12.7% 1%- 18% 0%- 25% 50%- 85% 14.9% 1%- 22% 0%- 24% 50%- 85%
Subordinate 32.5% 1%- 18% 0%- 25% 50%- 85% 28.5% 1%- 2C% 0%- 2% 50%- 85%
Subordinated intere-only 9.1% 3%- 1C% 0%- 18% 50%- 63% 13.5% 3%- 9% 0%-21% 50%- 8C%
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: 8.1% 1%- 15% 0%- 34% 50%- 85% 9.1% 1%- 13% 0%- 35% 50%- 85%

All of the significant inputs listed have some degof market observability, based on the Compakysvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legerity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect@@mpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections
conform to industry conventions. The Company usssi@ptions it considers its best estimate of futash flows for each respective secu

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a raoiggbservable prices on securities bac
by similar collateral. As the market becomes nwrkess liquid, the availability of these obseneainiputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abthateral balance that is expected to pay offagh point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral FE©f sloan-to-value ratio, debt-toeome ratio, and vintage on a loan level basisiaisdalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifieayment experience as obtained from remittancertsepnd market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are
real estate owned (“REQ”). These delinquent loaterthine the first 30 months of the default cuBeyond month 30, the default curve
transitions to a value that is reflective of a portof the current delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expass severity is based on collatesjpécific experience with consideration given toec
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@&ssuch as seasoning are taken into considergicause severities tend to initially increase
on newly originated securities, before beginnindéacline as the collateral ages and eventuallylizta® Collateral characteristics such as
loan size, loan-to-value, and geographic locatiocodateral also effect loss severity.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstment at principal value, plus unamortized prensiuiess unaccreted discounts and
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimateéair value of its securitized loans held foraatment by considering the loan
characteristics, including the credit charactessstif the borrower, purpose of the loan, use ottikateral securing the loan, and
management’s expectations of general economic tonsdliin the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquir@gtmnent securities. Due to the short
term nature of these financial instruments, the gamy estimates and records the fair value of theserchase agreements using the
contractual obligation plus accrued interest pagablmaturity.
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Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred twsGladated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Heldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compagsecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings pursa#8C 860. The Company carries securitized detite principal balance outstanding
plus unamortized premiums, less unaccreted dissaenbrded in connection with the financing of lthens or RMBS with third parties. The
premiums or discounts associated with the finanoirtipe notes or certificates are amortized overlifie of the instrument using the interest
method. The Company estimates the fair value airiiized debt by estimating the future cash flassociated with the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Thepany models the fair value of each underlyirggby considering, among other items,
the structure of the underlying security, coup@myiger, actual and expected defaults, actual apdated default severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and managehsesxpectations of general econol
conditions in the sector and other economic factors

The following table presents the carrying value tidvalue, as described above, of the Compafigancial instruments at June 30, 2012
December 31, 2011.

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Level in
Fair
Value Carrying Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency RMBS 3 $ 4,024,01- $ 4,024,01. $ 4,088,94! $ 4,088,94!
Agency RMBS 2 2,779,23! 2,779,23' 3,144,53. 3,144,53.
Securitized loans held for investm 3 1,322,89: 1,336,82! 256,63: 237,97
Repurchase agreeme; 2 (2,362,08) (2,366,85) (2,672,98) (2,677,40)
Securitized debt, non-Agency RMBS transferred tesotidated
VIEs
Securitized debt, loans held for investm
Interest rate sway

(1,371,73)  (1,441,79)  (1,630,27) (1,546,23)
(1,203,51)  (1,213,29) (212,779  (222,92)
(54,64¢) (54,64¢) (44,467 (44,467

N W w

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $2.4 billion and $2lioh of repurchase agreements with weighted ayefzorrowing rates of 0.43% and
0.35% and weighted average remaining maturitieé®alays and 48 days as of June 30, 2012 and Dec&hp2011, respectively. At June
30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, Agency RMBS pledgembllateral under these repurchase agreemeahhestimated fair value of $2.5
billion and $2.8 billion, respectively. The aveeadgily balances of the Company’s repurchase agneesnfior the six months ended June 30,
2012 and year ended December 31, 2011 were $HAdhtahd $3.8 billion, respectively. The interestas of these repurchase agreements are
generally indexed to the one-month or the threetmbiBOR rate and re-price accordingly.

At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the repsechgreements collateralized by Agency RMBS hadolfowing remaining maturities.

December 3:
June 30, 201 2011
(dollars in thousands

Overnight $ -$ =
1-29 days 1,084,28i 1,368,94!
30 to 59 day: 705,52: 836,00
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 279,96¢ 171,83t
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 292,31: 296,20:
Total $ 2,362,080 $ 2,672,98

At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Comgiainyot have an amount at risk under its repurela@seements greater than 10% of its
equity with any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt
All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are

recorded in the assets of the Company as secudritzes held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS $farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recourstitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.
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At June 30, 2012 the Company’s securitized debatohlized by residential mortgage loans had iacppal balance of $1.2 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2023 and 2042. At Jyr2032 the debt carried a weighted average cdstaricing equal to 3.60%. At
December 31, 2011, the Company’s securitized dalzteralized by residential mortgage loans hadrecjpal balance of $222.9 million. At
December 31, 2011, the debt carried a weightedhgeerost of financing equal to 5.48%.

At June 30, 2012 the Company'’s securitized debatohlized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principal bakaof $1.4 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At Jur032 the debt carried a weighted average cdstaricing equal to 5.03%. At
December 31, 2011, the Company'’s securitized dalzteralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principabioae of $1.7 billion. At
December 31, 2011, the debt carried a weightedhgeerost of financing equal to 5.09%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is base@tamortized cost, net of premiums or discounistee to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estichatgncipal repayment schedule of the securitizelok édt June 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011, based on expected cash flows of the resaentirtgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted for projeltisses on the underlying collateral of
the debt. All of the securitized debt recordethims Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@maldition is non-recourse to the
Company.

December 3:
June 30, 201 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Within One Yeal $ 654,53. $ 488,88t
One to Three Yeal 787,42¢ 598,92:
Three to Five Year 434,36 276,96!
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 630,66( 404,38t
Total $ 2,506,991 $ 1,769,15!

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt anpethelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentise underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experiencezeiN&es 3 and 4 for a more detailed discussiohe&écurities and loans collateralizing
securitized debt.

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE$fe purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laam®-securitizing RMBS and obtaini
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determineiff the primary beneficiary.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fitr the securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially abbandlinate interests provided the Company with thiegation to absorb losses and/or the right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could be #igant to the VIE. In addition, the Company isnsidered to have the power to direct the
activities of the VIEs that most significantly ingtahe VIES’ economic performance (“power”) or tiempany was determined to have
power in connection with its involvement with therpose and design of the VIE. Two trusts forme&drgo January 1, 2010 that were
evaluated by the Company did not meet the requingsifer consolidation due to the Company’s inapiit control certain activities of the
VIEs.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company’s consolidate@stant of financial condition includes nine condated VIE's with $4.5 billion of assets
and $2.6 billion of liabilities.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s statement of financial
condition, is restricted by the structural provismf these entities, and a recovery of the Comipanyestment in the vehicles will be limited
by each entity’s distribution provisions. The liéti®#s of the securitization vehicles, which arematonsolidated on the Company’s statement
of financial condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from eaturitization vehicle’s respective asset
pool.

The Company is not obligated to provide, nor hasavided, any financial support to these constdéidaecuritization vehicles.
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VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whihle Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The restuttomsolidation at June 30, 2012 is the
inclusion of $3.2 billion of Non-Agency RMBS at faialue representing the underlying securitiedefttusts, the inclusion of $1.3 billion of
securitized loans held for investment, the recagmibf $1.4 billion of securitized debt associatgth Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $1.2 billion of securitizesbtlassociated with loans held for investmentdditzon, at June 30, 2012 the Company
recognized $26.1 million and $9.6 million of acalusterest receivable and accrued interest payadsegectively, of the securitizations.

The trusts are structured as pass through entitéégeceive principal and interest on the undegydollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by thargezation entities are restricted in that they ©nly be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lintito its risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There haea In® recent changes to the nature of risks asedaidth the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

The securitization entities are comprised of seciasses of RMBS and jumbo, prime, residential gage loans. See Notes 3 and 4 for a
discussion of the characteristics of the securéiesloans in the Company’s portfolio.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilitse®rded in the consolidated statements of firsmeindition related to the consolidated VIES
as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

December 31,
June 30, 201 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Assets
Nor-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V $ 3,151,80 $ 3,270,33.
Securitized loan 1,322,89. 256,63:
Accrued interest receivah 26,14: 26,61¢
Liabilities
Securitized debt, n-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V $ 1,371,730 $ 1,630,27!
Securitized debt, loans held for investm 1,203,51! 212,77¢
Accrued interest payab 9,551 8,13(

Income and expense and OTTI amounts related totidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StateamehOperations and
Comprehensive Income is presented in the tablebelo

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201  June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Nc-Agency RMBS and securitized loans transferred tosobdated VIE: $ 109,490 $ 109,00:
Interest expense, N-Agency RMBS and securitized loans transferred tesotidated VIE: (19,48() (32,839
Net interest incom $ 90,01: $ 76,16¢
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (3,887 (8,87%)
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (48,087 (2,709
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (51,969 $ (11,589

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Nc-Agency RMBS and securitized loans transferred tosobdated VIE: $ 207,84: $ 222,96(
Interest expense, N-Agency RMBS and securitized loans transferred tesobidated VIE: (53,529 (65,359
Net interest incom $ 154,31 $ 157,60:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: $ (7,269 (26,889
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (73,132 (12,289

054

Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (80,40) $ (39,177)
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The amounts recorded on the consolidated stateroéngsh flows related to consolidated VIEs is prgsd in the table below for the periods

presented.

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, June 30,

2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:
Amortization of deferred financing cos 2,04¢ 452
Amortization of debt issue costs of securitizedt( (8,986 3,151
Payment of deferred financing co (3,709 -
Principal payments, RMBS transferred to consolidatiE's 131,14. 190,78
Principal payments, Securitized loe 93,08’ 23,06t
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, loaifd foe investmen 405,41 -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, loans foelshvestmen (90,765 (21,299
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, RMBS fesired to consolidated VIE (128,049 (188,66
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 1,557 (2,076
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa 162 (859)
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated Vv $ 401,90. $ 4,55¢
For the Six Months Ende:

June 30, June 30,

2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:
Amortization of deferred financing cos $ 5265 $ 90¢
Amortization of debt issue costs of securitizedt( (883) 6,50z
Payment of deferred financing co (8,079 -
Principal payments, RMBS transferred to consolidattE's 263,77 385,16¢
Principal payments, Securitized lo¢ 114,14¢ 48,40:
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, loaifd foe investmen 1,101,52 -
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, loans foelshvestmen (110,499 (45,159
Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, RMBS8dfietrred to consolidated VIt - 311,01
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, RMBS fesired to consolidated VIE (257,939 (366,75)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei (474) (1,909
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa 1,427 (380
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated Vv $ 1,108,270 $ 337,80(

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Biereefy

The Company has interests in the following VIEgdldition to the RMBS described in Note 3.

The Company'’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist considered the primary beneficiary generallinithe form of owning securities
issued by the trusts, similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that do not provide the Company witloatrolling financial interest. The
Company’s maximum exposure to loss does not incitkler-than-temporary impairments or other writevds that the Company previously

recognized through earnings.

The table below represents the carrying amountsksdification of assets recorded on the Compamgrsolidated financial statements
related to its variable interests in non-consobdafIEs, as well as its maximum exposure to loss @sult of its involvement with these

VIEs, which is represented by the fair value of @@mpany’s investments in the trusts.

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets

Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 88 % 89 % 16 $ 127
Senior intere-only - 14C 12¢ 26€
Subordinatec 3,12¢ 4,44¢ 4,651 4,85¢
Agency RMBS 1,57(C 1,611 1,89( 2,27¢
Total $ 4,78. $ 6,28¢ $ 6,837 $ 7,524

30




9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk
by entering into derivative financial instrumennt@cts in the form of interest rate swaps. Then@any’s swaps are used to lock in a fixed
rate related to a portion of its current and aptitéd payments on its repurchase agreements. Thedly typically agrees to pay a fixed rate
of interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the rightreceive a floating rate of interest (“receiveefpover a specified period of time. These
derivative financial instrument contracts are nesignated as hedges under ASC &&jvatives and Hedging The use of interest rate
swaps creates exposure to credit risk relatingptergial losses that could be recognized if thentenparties to these instruments fail to
perform their obligations under the contractsthie event of a default by the counterparty, the gamy could have difficulty obtaining its
RMBS pledged as collateral for swaps. The Compmamiodically monitors the credit of its counterpestto determine if it is exposed to
counterparty credit risk. See Note 13 for furthiscdssion.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statements of Financial Conditiol
of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

Location on Consolidated Value of Agency
Statement of Financial Net Estimated Fair RMBS Pledged as
Condition Notional Amount Value/Carrying Valut Collateral

(dollars in thousand:

June 30, 201 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (54,64¢ $ 59,28
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 950,000 $ (44,467 $ 46,64"

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gelmepsive Income is presented below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of
Operations and
Comprehensive Inconr
Net Unrealized Gains Net Realized Gains
(Losses) (Losses)
on Interest Rate Swa on Interest Rate Swa

(dollars in thousands

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 $ (10,999 $ (5,199
June 30, 201 $ (19,500 $ (4,297)
For the Six Months Ende:

June 30, 201 $ (10,180 $ (9,597)
June 30, 201 $ (9,669 $ (7,144

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seisiteate swaps at June 30, 2012 was 1.81% amnvdeilghted average receive rate was
0.25%. The weighted average pay rate on the Coygparierest rate swaps at December 31, 2011 w892 and the weighted average
receive rate was 0.29%.

The following table summarizes the notional amowamd unrealized gains (losses) of interest ratgwatracts on a gross basis, amounts

offset in accordance with netting arrangementsraichmounts as presented in the Consolidated Statsraf Financial Condition as of June
30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
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June 30, 201

Interest Rate Swa|- Asset Interest Rate Sway- Liability
Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amount: $ - $ - $ 1,355,000 $ 54,64¢
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amount: $ - $ - $ 1,355,000 $ 54,64¢
December 31, 201
Interest Rate Swa|- Asset Interest Rate Swaj- Liability
Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amount: $ - $ - $ 950,000 $ 44,46,
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amountt $ - $ - 3 950,00( $ 44,467

Certain of the Company’s derivative contracts afgjexct to International Swaps and Derivatives Aggtamn Master Agreements (“ISDA”)
which contain provisions that grant counterpartieain rights with respect to the applicable ISOon the occurrence of (i) negative
performance that results in a decline in net assetscess of specified thresholds or dollar ameorer set periods of time, (ii) the
Company’s failure to maintain its REIT status,)(ifie Company’s failure to comply with limits oretmount of leverage, and (iv) the
Company’s stock being delisted from the New YorcRtExchange (NYSE). Upon the occurrence of iteijnthough (iv), the counterparty
to the applicable ISDA has a right to terminatel®BA in accordance with its provisions. The agagtedfair value of all derivative
instruments with credit-risk-related contingenttégas that are in a net liability position at J&@e 2012 is approximately $55.0 million
including accrued interest, which represents thgimam amount the Company would be required to gaynuermination, which is fully
collateralized.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityetjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Setias LLC (“UBS”). Through this
agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, aslés agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of its constozk in ordinary brokers’
transactions at market prices or other transacasregreed between the Company and UBS. The Cgndidinot sell any shares of its
common stock under the equity distribution agredrdaning the quarter and six months ended Jun2@IR or 2011. As a result of the
Company’s delay in filing its SEC reports by thiinfj date required by the SEC (including the gnaegod permitted by Rule 12b-25 under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendeeXCompany will not be able to issue shares afdtamon stock under the equity
distribution agreement until filings with the SE@vie been timely made for a full year.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidddid Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (‘DRSFRe DRSPP provides
holders of record of its common stock an opportutdtautomatically reinvest all or a portion of itheash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of the Company’s comstook as well as to make optional cash paymersiichase shares of its common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may alsdhase the Company’s common stock under the plangh optional cash

payments. The DRSPP is administered by the Adtnitits, Computershare. The DRSPP was suspendatydhe quarter ended March 31,
2012 when the Company was no longer current fifiligs with the SEC. During the six months endethe 30, 2012 the Company raised
$117 thousand by issuing 39,000 shares througPR®&PP. During the six months ended June 30, #td Company raised $542 thousand
by issuing 135,000 shares through the DRSPP. &sudtrof the Company’s delay in filing its SEC resdy the filing date required by the
SEC (including the grace period permitted by Rudb-25 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded), the Company will not be
able to issue shares under the DRSPP until filimijs the SEC have been timely made for a full year.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012 the Comgeaakared dividends to common shareholders tot&l#®y4 million, or $0.09 per

share. During the quarter ended June 30, 201 dhepany declared dividends to common sharehotd&akng $133.4 million, or $0.13 per
share.
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During the six months ended June 30, 2012 the Coyngaclared dividends to common shareholders tm&P05.4 million, or $0.20 per
share. During the six months ended June 30, 28&1Company declared dividends to common sharetotdtaling $277.1 million, or $0.27
per share.
There was no preferred stock issued or outstarabngf June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
Earnings per share for the quarters and six maeritdsd June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, is ctad@s follows:

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 40,78 $ 53,97¢
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 40,78: $ 53,97¢

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,026,809,70 1,026,308,89
Effect of dilutive securities 695,54 821,60(
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,505,24 1,027,130,49
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder- Basic $ 0.0 % 0.0t
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder- Diluted $ 0.0¢ % 0.0t

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 121,01 $ 154,61
Effect of dilutive securities - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 121,01 $ 154,61

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,026,785,89 1,026,259,30
Effect of dilutive securities 711,52: 837,66.
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,497,41 1,027,096,96
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder- Basic $ 0.1z $ 0.1
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder- Diluted $ 0.1z $ 0.1f

11. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptareto provide incentives to its independentaes and employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attractyard and retain personnel and other service prosjdad to align their interest with the common
share investors. The incentive plan authorizeCibmpensation Committee of the board of directorgrant awards, including incentive st
options, nongualified stock options, restricted shares andraijyyges of incentive awards. The specific awahtgd to an individual is bas
upon, in part, the individual’s position within FAT, the individual’s position within the Companyistor her contribution to the Company’s
performance, as well as the recommendations of EIDAhe incentive plan authorizes the grantingmifams or other awards for an
aggregate of the greater of 8.0% of the outstansliages of the Company’s common stock up to ancedf 40,000,000 shares.
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On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 share$DAE’'s employees and the
Company’s independent directors. The awards tintthependent directors vested on the date of gnadithe awards to FIDAC's employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 years. Of theswes, as of June 30, 2012, 606,000 shares batexhand 45,000 shares were forfeited

of June 30, 2012 there was $12.3 million of totalaecognized compensation costs related to nondesi@re-based compensation
arrangements granted under the long term inceptarg based on the closing price of the shareb@gitant date. As of June 30, 2012 there
was $1.6 million of total unrecognized compensatosts related to non-vested share-based compamsatangements granted under the
long term incentive plan, based on the closingepoitthe shares at the quarter end. That cosipiscted to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 5.5 years. The total fair valushares vested, less those forfeited, during tiaetgrs ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was
$88 thousand and $121 thousand, respectively, las#tk closing price of the stock on the vestiated The total fair value of shares vested,
less those forfeited, during the six months endet B0, 2012 and 2011 was $170 thousand and $a66ahd, respectively. For the quarters
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, compensation expsesseiated with the amortization of the fair vadfi¢he restricted stock was
approximately $88 thousand and $125 thousand, cesply. For the six months ended June 30, 20122911, compensation expense
associated with the amortization of the fair vadfiehe restricted stock was approximately $169 sama and $249 thousand, respectively.

The Company’s independent directors receive a fo@lthr amount of the Comparsycommon stock in return for services providedhi
Company. Equity based awards granted to the indkge directos vest during the year of service. For the quareeded June 30, 2012
2011, the Company recognized $75 thousand andi®6&and, respectively, of stock based compenstigmdependent directors. For
six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Compa=oognized $150 thousand and $135 thousand, adsglg, of stock base
compensation to independent directors.

The following table presents information with resipi the Company restricted stock awards during the quarters anohenths ended Ju
30, 2012 and June 30, 2011:

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Number of Grant Date Fair Number of Grant Date Fair

Shares Value Shares Value
Unvested shares outstand- beginning of periot 726,80( 17.72 853,20( 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (31,399 17.72 (30,66%) 17.72
Forfeited (202) 17.72 (93€) 17.72
Unvested shares outstanding - end of period 695,20( 17.72 821,60( 17.72
For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Number of Grant Date Fai Number of Grant Date Fai

Shares Value Shares Value

Unvested shares outstand- beginning of periot 758,40( 17.72 884,80( 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (62,819 17.72 (61,700 17.72
Forfeited (381 17.72 (1,500 17.72
Unvested shares outstanding - end of period 695,20( 17.72 821,60( 17.72

12. Income Taxes

As long as the Company qualifies as a REIT, the @y is not subject to Federal income tax to therexhat it makes qualifying
distributions to its stockholders, and providedadtnplies on a continuing basis, through actualstment and operating results, with the REIT
requirements including certain asset, income, itlistion and stock ownership tests. Most statesgeize REIT status. During the quarter
ended June 30, 2012 the Company recorded no intirexpense and during the quarter ended Juned3Q,tBe Company recorded income
tax expense of $118 thousand. During the six moattded June 30, 2012 the Company recorded in@oexpense of $2 thousand and
during the six months ended June 30, 2011 the Coynegcorded income tax expense of $816 thousand.
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In general, common stock cash dividends declaretid¥ompany will be considered ordinary incomsttzkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital.

The Company files tax returns in several U.S. flicisons, including New York State and New York\yCitThe 2007 through 2012 tax years
remain open to U.S. federal, state and local taxéxations.

13. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeelit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and NageAcy RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and bomg#/under repurchase
agreements. When the Company assumes interesistgti attempts to minimize interest rate riekaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetghweitbost of related liabilities. The Company atsrto minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwritten to agreed-upon specifications of seleariginators. The Company has
established a whole loan target market including@hborrowers with FICO scores generally greatant®50, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propeatyd moderate loan-to-value ratios. These faei@sonsidered to be important
indicators of credit risk.

By using derivative hedging instruments and repasehagreements, the Company is exposed to courtyecpedit risk if counterparties to t
contracts do not perform as expected. If a countgrgails to perform on a derivative hedging instient, the Company’s counterparty credit
risk is equal to the amount reported as a derigasset on its balance sheet to the extent thairgreaceeds collateral obtained from the
counterparty or, if in a net liability position,alextent to which collateral posted exceeds thudlitiato the counterparty. The amounts repo

as a derivative asset/(liability) are derivativetacts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the exseibject to master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the sasnanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedéfcounterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposea#ss &0 the extent that the fair value of collatpiatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimizentenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorthg counterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collatetere appropriate.

14. Management Agreement and Related Party Trans#ons

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEWMAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an
automatic one-year extension option and subjecettain termination rights. The Compensation Cotteaiof the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerhp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, the Company paid FI2Aquarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdageity (as defined in the management agreemerbjeo€ompany. Effective November
28, 2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.86%npum of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which réigucwill remain in effect until the
Company is current on all of its filings requiredder applicable securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tteatgrs ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were $12i@mahd $13.2 million,
respectively. Management fees accrued and paitXAE for the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2@dre $25.8 million and $25.9
million, respectively.

Under the management agreement, the Company gatdxdi to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurrederritie management agreement. In
addition, the management agreement permits FIDA@daire the Company to pay for its pro rata portodrent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other officéeinal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incunredmnnection with the Company’s
operations. These expenses are allocated betWwB&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAJ@datad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Compalh modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjsbgard of directors if the allocation becomegjimeable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC’s otherdsimnd accounts). During the quarter and six nsoatidled June 30, 2012 the Company
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $125 thousand artD$Bousand for such expenses. During the quamtksix months ended June 30,
2011, the Company reimbursed FIDAC approximately0bthousand and $316 thousand for such expenses.
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Because of the Restatement, the Company and FID@€hded the management agreement on March 8, 2028e amendment, the
reduction in the management fee was memorialiFE¢BAC agreed to pay all past and future expensaistiie Company and/or the Audit
Committee of the Company incur to: (1) evaluateGoeenpany’s accounting policy related to the appilicaof GAAP to its non-Agency

RMBS portfolio (the “Evaluation”); (2) restate t@®mpany’s financial statements for the period cimgeR008 through 2011 as a result of the
Evaluation (the “Restatement Filing”); and (3) istigate and evaluate any shareholder derivativeaddmarising from the Evaluation and/or
the Restatement Filing (the “Investigation”); prded, however, that FIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenapplies only to expenses not paid by
the Company’s insurers under its insurance policEegpenses shall include, without limitation, feesl costs incurred with respect to
auditors, outside counsel, and consultants engag#éte Company and/or the Audit Committee of then@any for the Evaluation,
Restatement Filing and the Investigation.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. The agime@nt also provides that the Company may termithetenanagement agreement effec
immediately if (i) FIDAC engages in any act of fcaumisappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agahe Company, (ii) there is an event
of any gross negligence on the part of FIDAC inpgkeformance of its duties under the managemeeeagent, (iii) there is a commencement
of any proceeding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcyirmsolvency, (iv) there is a dissolution of FIDA@, (v) FIDAC is convicted of (including

a plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrative services agreement with RCap Securities (“RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiades in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such servR€=map may also provide brokerage services to tragany from time to time. During tl
quarter and six months ended June 30, 2012, feéspRCap were $29 thousand and $73 thousandectsely. During the quarter and six
months ended June 30, 2011, fees paid to RCap$&&réhousand.

During the quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2a180G shares of restricted stock issued by the @omp FIDAC’s employees
vested. During the six months ended June 30, 2882011 63,200 shares of restricted stock issyd¢ddebCompany to FIDAC's employees
vested.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoinedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hasbifgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managersamdtiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure under ASC 4586ntingencies as of June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.

16. Immaterial Restatement of Prior Period Amounts

The Company corrected amounts previously reportedotal OTTI losses and the nemedit portion of loss recognized in Ot
comprehensive income (loss) in the ConsolidatedeBtants of Operations and Comprehensive Incoméagrevious presentation v
reported on a cumulative basis. The current ptatien reflects only that portion of total OTTI k#hat is incremental for the reporting pe
by giving consideration to OTTI reported and redagd in prior periods. For the three month peeoding March 31, 2011, the previot
reported total OTTI of $70.2 million and the noredit portion of loss of $37.0 million were redddey approximately $41.5 million. For 1
three month period ending June 30, 2011, the puslyoreported total OTTI of $72.4 million and thenaredit portion of loss of $10
million were reduced by approximately $14.5 milliofror the six month period ending June 30, 20l greviously reported total OT
losses of $142.6 million and the non-credit portddtoss of $47.2 million were reduced by approxieia$59.6 million.

In the Company’s 2012 Form 1D-for the period ending March 31, 2012, the Compdiay not present total OTTI correctly when t
cumulative credit losses are greater than total Qi the Consolidated Statements of Operations @athprehensive Income. Total O7
losses should be reported net of unrealized gaina security when they occur in the same period esedit loss. The previously repor
total OTTI and noreredit portion of loss for three month period ergdiviarch 31, 2012 of $57.0 million and $8.6 milliaespectively, wel
reduced by $24.9 million. Additionally, the Compampted an error in the presentation of reclasifie) items within Comprehensive Inca
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations andpehensive Income for the three months ended Mat¢l2012. This error would res
in areduction of $47.1 million between Unrealizgdins (losses) on available-feale securities, net, an increase in Reclassifit
adjustment for net losses included in net incoroes{l for other-thatemporary credit impairment losses of $62.6 millard a reduction
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggains) included in net income (loss) of $15.5lioml. These adjustments are soley betv
the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensigenhe (Loss) and have no impact on Total stockisltequity. The errors not
related to March 31, 2012 will be corrected in @@mpanys future filings that presents such informatione ®ix month period ended Ji
30, 2012 reflects the correction of the March 311 2errors.

The correction had no impact on any previously rieggb Net other-thatemporary credit impairment losses, Net incomes{lo©the
comprehensive income (loss), Net income (losskhare available to common shareholders or Congetidatatements of Cash Flows.
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17. Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors of the Company initiatedeguiar quarterly dividend of $0.09 per common shiar¢he third and fourth quarter of
2012, and for each quarter of 2013. The Board of@ors declared common stock cash dividends @9$8er common share for the third
fourth quarter of 2012, and the first three quart#r2013. For the four quarters of 2012, the Campgaaid cash dividends totaling $0.38 per
common share, and for the first two quarters of2@ie Company paid cash dividends totaling $0&rf8&pmmon share. The third quarter
2013 dividend will be paid on October 31, 2013.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we”“our”) financial condition and results of operations skdug read in conjunction with t
consolidated financial statements and notes teetbtaements included in Item 1 of this quartegfyart on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to ideft forward-looking statements. Statements regagdhe following subjects, among others,
are forward-looking by their nature:

e our business and investment strategy;

e our ability to maintain existing financing arramgents, obtain future financing arrangements aedetms of such arrangements,
particularly in light of the Restatement and othmatters discussed in this Form 10-Q;

e our ability to timely file our periodic reports withe SEC;

e our expectations regarding materiality or sigrifice;

e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls jadedures;

e material weaknesses in our internal controls déwmancial reporting;

e additional information may arise from the preparaof our financial statements;

e our internal controls over financial reportingynze inadequate or have weaknesses of which weatmeurrently aware or which have
not been detected,;

e general volatility of the securities markets ihigh we invest;

e the impact of and changes to various governmergrpms;

e our expected investments;

e changes in the value of our investments;

e interest rate mismatches between our investnamur borrowings used to fund such purchases;

e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepaynaest

e effects of interest rate caps on our adjustade-investments;

e rates of default or decreased recovery ratesioimgestments;

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans Iyigiour mortgage-backed or other asset-backedriies;
e the degree to which our hedging strategies magayr not protect us from interest rate volatility;

e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and aimilatters;
e availability of investment opportunities in regtate-related and other securities;

e availability of qualified personnel,

e estimates relating to our ability to make digitibns to our stockholders in the future;

e our understanding of our competition;

e market trends in our industry, interest rates,dbbt securities markets or the general economy;
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e our ability to maintain our classification as BIR for federal income tax purposes; and
e our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act of 1¢

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futurtopaance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoulat place undue reliance on these forwkmaking statements. These beliefs, assumption
expectations can change as a result of many pessileints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption “Risk Factors” in our most raté&nnual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequert®dy Reports on Form 10-Q. If a
change occurs, our business, financial conditigmjdity and results of operations may vary matgrifrom those expressed in our forward-
looking statements. Any forward-looking statemgrgaks only as of the date on which it is made. Nsks and uncertainties arise from time
to time, and it is impossible for us to predictsb@vents or how they may affect us. Except asnegtby law, we are not obligated to, anc
not intend to, update or revise any forward-lookstatements, whether as a result of new informafidgare events or otherwise.

Special Note Regarding this Form 10-Q

Unless otherwise indicated herein or as may beimedjby law (including, without limitation, to reftt the effects of the Restatement, as
defined below), the disclosure included in thisrRdi0-Q is presented as of June 30, 2012. Accoditiys Form 10-Q does not reflect all
events occurring after June 30, 2012 (except asnegljby law, or as required by ASC 8Shjbsequent Eventsand we have not undertaken
to update each and every item included in this FborQ to reflect such events. Therefore, this Fber) should be read in conjunction with
our filings we have previously made with the Settesiand Exchange Commission subsequent to Jurk03Q,

Restatement

We restated our previously issued (i) Consolidedéatements of Financial Condition included in oumdal Report on Form 1R-as o
December 31, 2010 and (ii) Consolidated Statemeht®perations and Comprehensive Income, Consolid&tatements of Changes
StockholdersEquity (Deficit), and Consolidated Statements ofiC&lows for the years ended December 31, 201(®2@a66, including th
cumulative effect of the Restatement on Retainediegs (accumulated deficit) as of the earliesiquepresented (the “Restatemerdd pai
of our Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2011. The Ramstit also impacted each of the quarters for thiegsebeginning wit
our inception in November 2007 through the quagteded September 30, 2011. The historical intgr@émods included in this Form 1D-
have been restated to reflect the Restatement.

As discussed in Note 16, w e corrected amountsqusly reported in total OTTI losses and the noedirportion of loss recognized in Other
comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidatete8tants of Operations and Comprehensive Incomieeggrevious presentation was
reported on a cumulative basis. The current ptasien reflects only that portion of total OTTI bthat is incremental for the reporting pel
by giving consideration to OTTI reported and redagd in prior periods. For the three month pegoding March 31, 2011, the previously
reported total OTTI of $70.2 million and the noredit portion of loss of $37.0 million were redudgdapproximately $41.5 million. For the
three month period ending June 30, 2011, the pusiyaeported total OTTI of $72.4 million and themcredit portion of loss of $10.2
million were reduced by approximately $14.5 milliofror the six month period ending June 30, 2@&lpreviously reported total OTTI
losses of $142.6 million and the non-credit portidtoss of $47.2 million were reduced by approxiena$59.6 million.

In our 2012 Form 10-Q for the period ending Mar@éh 3012, we did not present total OTTI correctlyawhotal cumulative credit losses are
greater than total OTTI in the Consolidated Stateef Operations and Comprehensive Income. Totdll@sses should be reported net of
unrealized gains on a security when they occunénsame period as a credit loss. The previouplgrted total OTTI and non-credit portion
of loss for three month period ending March 31,261$57.0 million and $8.6 million, respectivelyere reduced by $24.9

million. Additionally, we noted an error in thegzentation of reclassification items within Compmeive Income in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Incontbd three months ended March 31, 2012. Tha @rould result in a net
reclassification of $47.1 million between Unreatizgains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, Reclassification adjustment for net
losses included in net income (loss) for other-tteanporary credit impairment losses of $62.6 milland Reclassification adjustment for net
realized losses (gains) included in net incomesflo$ $15.5 million. The errors noted related tarbh 31, 2012 will be corrected in our fut
filings that presents such information. The six thgoeriod ended June 30, 2012 reflects the coardtf the March 31, 2012 errors. For the
years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31 t2@p0eviously reported total OTTI losses of $418illion and $295.4 million
respectively, and the non-credit portion of lossognized in Other comprehensive income (loss) énGbnsolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Income of $61.0 million and $3.63llion, respectively, will be reduced by appnmately $176.2 million and $255.7
million, respectively, in our 2012 Form 10-K.

The correction had no impact on any previously riegab Net other-thatemporary credit impairment losses, Net incomesflo©the
comprehensive income (loss), Net income (lossgpare available to common shareholders or Consetiddtatements of Cash Flows.

Executive Summary

We acquire, either directly or indirectly throughrsubsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed seéesirior RMBS, residential mortgage loans,
commercial mortgage loans, real estate relatedritiestand various other asset classes. We aeerely managed by Fixed Income
Discount Advisory Company, which we refer to as ADor our Manager. FIDAC is a fixddeome investment management company tt
registered as an investment adviser with the SHDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Annaly Capikéanagement, Inc., or

Annaly. FIDAC has a broad range of experience amaging investments in Agency RMBS, which are nag&gpass-through certificates,
collateralized mortgage obligations, or CMOs, atiteoRMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage lo¢



issued or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie MacGamie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debligations, or CDOs, and other
real estate related investments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubkteturns to our investors over the long-term, prify through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achig objective by investing in a diversified intleent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievaridus other asset classes, subject to maintacundrREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and CDOs we purchase may include investmertegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.

We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifyirgg@ts within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current anggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaogcted supply and demand, credit and markietcosicentration limits, liquidity, cost
of financing and financing availability, as well agintaining our REIT qualification and our exeroptifrom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment

portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wothr Manager’s experience, will enable us to paydéinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credites and provide attractive long-term returnatestors.
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Our targeted asset classes and the principal imesgs we have made and in which we may in the dutwest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments
RMBS e Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and norestment grade
classes, including the E-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe!

e Agency RMBS.
e Interes-only RMBS.

Residential Mortgage Loans e Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loartctivd#orm to the
underwriting guidelines of Fannie Mae and FreddecMvhich we refer to as
Agency Guidelines; and jumbo prime mortgage loargch are mortgage loans
that conform to the Agency Guidelines except dsda size

e Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have been originated
using documentation standards that are less stririgan the documentation
standards applied by certain other first lien magtgloan purchase programs,
such as the Agency Guidelines, but have one or cmrgensating factors such
as a borrower with a strong credit or mortgageohysor significant asset

e FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loang ttmemply with the
underwriting guidelines of the Federal Housing Adistiration (FHA) or
Department of Veteran Affairs (VA) and which areaganteed by the FHA or
VA, respectively

e Mortgage servicing rights associated with resig¢ntortgage loans, which
reflect the value of the future stream of expec&sh flows from the contractual
rights to service a given pool of residential magg loans

Commercial Mortgage Loans e First or second lien loans secured by multifamigperties, which are resident
rental properties consisting of five or more dwglunits; and mixed residential
or other commercial properties; retail propert@fice properties; or industrial
properties, which may or may not conform to the AgeGuidelines

Other Asse-Backed Securitie e CMBS.
e Debt and equity tranches of CD(

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgeade and non-
investment grade classes, including the-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNieg-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans tet been originated by select originators, inclgdhre retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at J88e2012 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBS. Jéte 30, 2012, based on the
outstanding principal balance of our interest esgrassets, approximately 72.9% of our investmertfgim was Non-Agency RMBS, 18.1%
of our investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, antl%.of our investment portfolio was securitized desitial mortgage loans. At
December 31, 2011, based on the outstanding pahlsglance of our interest earning assets, app@teiymn75.4% of our investment portfolio
was Non-Agency RMBS, 21.1% of our investment pdidfavas Agency RMBS, and 3.5% of our investmentfodio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. We expect that ovendla term, our investment portfolio will continteebe weighted toward RMBS, subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Asemption.
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Following our initial public offering we initialllengaged in transactions with residential mortgagdihg operations of leading commercial
banks and other originators in which we identiféed re-underwrote residential mortgage loans oviayeslich entities, and purchased and
securitized such residential mortgage loans. énpst we have also acquired formerly AAA-rated Mgency RMBS and immediately re-
securitized those securities. We sold the reguliAA-rated super senior RMBS and retained thedrateunrated mezzanine RMBS. More
recently we have engaged in transactions with essial mortgage lending operations of leading consmaébanks and other originators in
which we identified and re-underwrote residentiafrtgage loans owned by such entities, and ratlaer purchasing and securitizing such
residential mortgage loans, we and the originat@nmther entity, such as an investment bank, tsireid the securitization and we purchased
the resulting mezzanine and subordinate Non-Ag&iBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We will adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftiug asset allocations across these various assested as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategymhined with FIDAC'’s experience, will enable us yplividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. elfiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investmentdatand of a financial reporting period will notrsiticantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdaddmrer the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to fund the acquisition of our assétsr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income wea@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. eWpect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including, wla&ailable, repurchase agreements, warehousgiésgisecuritizations, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. We may manage our dedbirgterest rate risk by utilizing interest rate gesl, such as interest rate swaps and
to reduce the effect of interest rate fluctuatioglated to our financing sources.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT and opeuateusiness to be exempt from registration undel840 Act, and therefore we are
required to invest a substantial majority of owseds in loans secured by mortgages on real estdtseal estate-related assets. Subject to
maintaining our REIT qualification and our 1940 Astemption, we do not have any limitations on tants we may invest in any of our
targeted asset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each assesabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investstietegy and policies without a vote of our ktadders.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &dteby various factors, many of which are beyondomntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the |®felur net interest income, the market value ofassgets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Economic trends, both macro as svtlose directly affecting the residential housimayket, and the supply and demand of
RMBS may effect our operations and financial resuliVe also evaluate market information regardimgent residential mortgage loan
underwriting criteria and loan defaults to managepmwrtfolio of assets, leverage, and debt.

Our net interest income, which reflects the amatiin of purchase premiums and accretion of distsowaries primarily as a result of
changes in interest rates, borrowing costs, ciegliirment losses, and prepayment speeds, whizglmisasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gege loans. Further description of these fac®wpsavided below.

Prepayment Spee. Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CorRtapayment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteegss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, angeotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @rtainty. In general, when interest
rates rise, it is relatively less attractive fortogvers to refinance their mortgage loans, and@salt, prepayment speeds tend to

decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymemtdspend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeamedecreases as the purchase premium on the horadtizes faster than

expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymendspegult in increased income and can extend thiechever which we amortize the
purchase premium.
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For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchasadistcount, as prepayment speeds increase, thenamioincome we earn increases
from the acceleration of the accretion of the disdanto interest income. Conversely, decreas@gseépayment speeds result in decreased
income as the accretion of the purchase discotmiriterest income occurs over a longer periodceRty, the correlation between interest
rates and prepayment has not followed normal trémdsertain asset classes. Due to economic hgrdsbme borrowers have been unable to
refinance their loans as underwriting standardsrare stringent and credit conditions remain resue.

Rising Interest Rate Environme. As indicated above, as interest rates rise gym@ent speeds generally decrease. Rising intertes,
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbime. In addition, if we acquire Agency
and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resgjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMSs, and threefigaeyear hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decreasesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjuistable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbatiixed-rate assets would decline in value iisgg interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthden a rising interest rate environment to thteat such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringreésed Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradeduse of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prcé shat its loss-adjusted return
profile is in line with our targeted yields. Weain the risk of potential credit losses on altleg residential mortgage loans we hold in our
portfolio as well as all of the subordinate Non-Agg RMBS. We attempt to mitigate credit risk i thsset selection process. Prior to the
purchase of investments, we conduct a credit-réglet analysis of the collateral securing our imaest that includes examining borrower
characteristics, geographic concentrations, cuandtprojected delinquencies, current and projesteérities, and actual and expected
prepayment speeds among other characteristicsitoats expected losses. We also acquire asseté wigidelieve to be of high credit
quality. We believe this strategy will generallyeleour credit losses and financing costs low.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as meadirgthe aggregate unpaid principal balance ofmoontgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgegelated securities and the other assets weiswatso a key revenue driver. Generally,
as the size of our investment portfolio grows, dh®unt of interest income we receive increase® lditlger investment portfolio, however,
may result in increased expenses if we incur aufthti interest expense to finance the purchasercdssets.

Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Value

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotiatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios
based on GAAP book value. The table and discussetow present our estimated economic book valife.calculate and disclose this non-
GAAP measurement because we believe it represerastanate of the fair value of the assets the Gampwns or is able to dispose of,
pledge, or otherwise monetize.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securittratand re-securitization transactions where we liketermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeassits to the trusts, which issued tranches @frsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have naneomg involvement in these trusts other than beirglder of notes or certificates issued by
the trusts, with the same rights as other holdetiseonotes or certificates, except as it reladeS$SMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2012-CIM2.

As it relates solely to CSMC 2012-CIM1 and CSMC 2@IM2, the Company has the ability to approve loardifications and determine t
course of action to be taken as it relates to lémteschnical default, including whether or noptwceed with foreclosure. The notes and
certificates we own that were issued by the tragdargely subordinated interests in those truste trusts have no recourse to our assets
other than pursuant to a breach by us of the tcdiosadocuments related to the transfer of thetagseus to the trusts, but are presented as if
we own 100% of the trust.
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For re-securitized RMBS transactions, we presentéhsecuritized assets related to the consolidaists in our consolidated statements of
financial condition as Non-Agency RMBS transferteadonsolidated VIEs and securitized loans heldrfeestment and the liabilities as
Securitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS transferred tosohidated VIEs and securitized loans held for gtveent. We have presented the
underlying securities we transferred to the trémtshe calculation of GAAP book value at fair valand recorded the corresponding liability
for the notes or certificates sold to third par¢samortized cost. Fair value adjustments thenat credit related are recorded in Other
Comprehensive Income. Credit related impairmergsdaemed other-than-temporary and are recordeativings.

For securitized loans held for investment, we pretiee securitized assets related to consolidatestistin our consolidated statements of
financial position as Securitized loans held fareistment, net of allowance for loan losses andlili@s as Securitized debt, loans held for
investment. We have presented the underlying leansansferred to the trusts, net of an allowancéddan losses, and corresponding liab
for the notes or certificates sold to third paraéamortized cost, for GAAP book value.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe underlying securities we transferred imatrusts as we do not own those
securities, we also present our estimated econbatk value. We believe this measure representsdtimated value of the securities issued
by these trusts that we own. In contrast to GAABKwalue, our estimated economic book value censidnly the assets we own or are able
to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise monetize. &teminine our estimated economic book value, weidensnly the fair value of the notes or
certificates issued by the securitization andeeuritization trusts that we actually own. Acdoglly, our estimated economic book value ¢
not include assets or liabilities for which we hanedirect ownership, specifically the notes otifieates of the securitization and re-
securitization trusts that were sold to third pesti We believe this estimate represents the \adltie assets that we own and are able to
dispose of, pledge, or otherwise monetize as ofrthasurement date.

At June 30, 2012 the difference between GAAP baakerand estimated economic book value was detethimbe $240.2 million. At
December 31, 2011 the difference between GAAP badke and estimated economic book value was detedrtd be $159.2 million. This
difference is primarily driven by the nature of #giesets we have retained in these re-securitizadosactions as compared to the nature of
underlying loans and securities in these transastidn these re-securitization transactions, wained the subordinated, typically non-rated,
first loss notes or certificates issued by theeeuritization trusts. These securities are compypically locked out as to principal repaymu
relatively illiquid, and do not necessarily appegeior depreciate in tandem with the broader Noansg RMBS market or with the
underlying securities owned by the trusts. Théewmbelow present the adjustments to GAAP bookevakcessary to reflect our calculatiol
estimated economic book value as of June 30, 26d Dacember 31, 2011.
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Assets:
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali
Senior
Senior intere-only
Subordinatet
Subordinated intere-only
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val
Securitized loans held for investment, net of allose for loan losse
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Repurchase agreements, Agency RN

Securitized debt, Nc-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V
Securitized debt, loans held for investm

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

Book Value Per Share
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GAAP Book
Value

June 30, 201

Adjustments

Estimated
Economic
Book
Value

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

$ 665 $ - $ 665
210,50 - 210,50
640,42" - 640,42"
20,61 - 20,61

3,151,80 (1,593,86) 1,557,941
2,779,23' - 2,779,23!
1,322,89. (1,221,62) 101,26¢
180,43¢ - 180,43¢
$ 8,306,558 $ (2,81549) $  5,491,00
2,362,08: - 2,362,08:
1,371,731 (1,371,73) -
1,203,51 (1,203,51) -
188,52 - 188,52
5,125,87 (2,575,25) 2,550,61
3,180,71. (240,24 2,940,47.
$ 830658 $ (281549) $  5,491,00
$ 3.1C $ 0.29 $ 2.87




December 31, 201

Estimated
Economic
GAAP Book Book
Value Adjustments Value
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢
Assets:
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair vali
Senior $ 1,02C $ - $ 1,02(
Senior intere-only 188,67¢ - 188,67¢
Subordinatet 606,89! - 606,89!
Subordinated intere-only 22,01¢ - 22,01¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,270,33. (1,789,519 1,480,81!
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securities, at fair val 3,144,53. - 3,144,583
Securitized loans held for investment, net of aloee for loan losse 256,63. - 256,63.
Other assets 257,02 - 257,02
Total assets $ 7,747,13" $ (1,789,51) $  5,957,62
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 2,672,98! - 2,672,98!
Securitized debt, Nc-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V 1,630,27! (1,630,27)) -
Securitized debt, loans held for investm 212,77¢ - 212,77¢
Other liabilities 183,47: - 183,47:
Total liabilities 4,699,511 (1,630,271 3,069,241
Total stockholders' equity 3,047,61! (159,239 2,888,38.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 7,747,213 $ (1,789,51) $ 5,957,62
Book Value Per Share $ 297 $ (0.15) $ 2.81

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment. Should we sell the assets in our paotfale may realize materially different proceedsiirthe sale than we have estimated ¢
the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own
and the liabilities for which we are legally obligd, and is presented for informational use ofiliie estimated economic book value should
not be viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012, on an ggtgdasis, we purchased $25.2 million and receb@d®.2 million in principal payments
related to our Agency and Non-Agency RMBS portfole purchased $432.0 million of securitized loand received $93.1 million in
paydowns related to our securitized loans.

The following table summarizes certain charactessaf our portfolio at June 30, 2012 and Decen®igr2011.
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December 31

June 30, 201 2011
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 8,126,114 $ 7,490,10
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 4,937,34. $ 4,516,04
Leverage at peric-end 1.6:1 1.5:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 0.7:1 0.9:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Non-Agency RMBS 72.% 75.2%
Senior 0.C% 0.C%
Senior, interest onl 27.&% 26.1%
Subordinatel 9.2% 9.7%
Subordinated, interest on 1.9% 1.%
RMBS transferred to consolidated variable inteessities 34.(% 37.1%
Agency RMBS 18.1% 21.1%
Securitized loan 9.C% 3.5%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 76.%% 74.%%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 23.1% 25.1%

* Excludes cash and cash equivale

The following table presents details of each aslgests in our portfolio at June 30, 2012 and Decer8he2011. The principal or notional
value represents the interest income earning balaheach class. The weighted average figureweaighted by each investment’s respective
principal/notional value in the asset class.

June 30, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted Principal
Value at Weighted Average Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Writedowns
Period-End Average Weighted Weighted Yield Average 3  Average 12 Average Average Average  During Perio(
(dollars in Amortized  Average Fair  Average at PeriodEnd Month CPR  Month CPR  Delinquency Loss Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basit Value Coupon (1) at Perio-End at Perio-End Pipeline 60+ Severity (2) Enhancemer thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 718 $ 92.3¢ 3 92.7C 1.01% 4.1% 21.1% 22.9% 26.7°% 74.21% 77.8% $ -
Senior, intereston  $ 4,082,59° $ 50¢ $ 5.1€ 1.9%% 13.2¢% 17.17% 16.12% 21.2% 52.72% 0.00% $ -
Subordinatet $134461 % 4777 $ 47.6% 3.2% 10.6€% 19.06% 18.09% 19.0(% 51.5:% 19.6% $ 14,41¢
Subordinated
interest only $ 271,410 3 6.9z $ 7.5¢ 2.66% 6.15% 16.2(% 15.2% 23.1(% 45.51% 0.0% $ -
RMBS transferre(
to
consolidated
variable
interest entitie! $4991,19 % 53.4¢ $ 64.4¢ 5.1(% 15.1% 15.0(% 14.0¢% 31.0% 58.31% 29% $ 61,42¢
Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securitie $ 2,652,077 $ 103.0¢ $ 107.6¢ 4.65% 3.7¢% 20.7°% 18.5(% NA NA 0.0% $ -
Securitized loan $1,319,48 $ 1011« $ 101.3: 4.8%% 4.31% 21.1% 4.7% 0.7%% 4.4% 9.6% $ 1,22¢
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc..
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional Weighted Principal
Value at Weighted Average Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Writedowns
Period-End Average Weighted Weighted Yield \Average 3  Average 12 Average Average Average  During Periot
(dollars in Amortized  Average Fair  Average  at PeriodEnd Month CPR  Month CPR  Delinquency Loss Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basit Value Coupon (1) at Perio-End at Perio-End Pipeline 60+ Severity (2) Enhancemer thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 1118 $ 95.1¢  $ 91.5¢ 1.02% 2.95% 20.2:% 14.55% 30.9% 68.4% 75.11% $ -
Senior, intereston $ 3,734,45.  $ 53/ % 5.08 1.9€% 13.2¢% 15.8(% 17.02% 19.77% 49.9¢% 0.00% $ -
Subordinatet $ 1,378,89 $ 47.4¢ % 44.01 3.4% 9.57% 16.4¢% 17.5¢% 19.4¢% 50.07% 19.0% $  19,96¢
Subordinated
interest only $ 277560 % 78¢ $ 7.9¢ 2.94% 9.9:% 13.31% 15.01% 24.3% 45.8(% 0.00% $ -
RMBS transferre(
to
consolidated
variable
interest entitie: $5,265,120 $ 551« $ 62.11 5.32% 14.56% 12.4(% 14.7(% 32.2t% 57.61% 4.15% $ 161,26:
Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securitie $293704 $ 103.00 $ 107.0¢ 4.6% 3.82% 28.4% 24.5% NA NA 100.0% $ -
Securitized loan $ 268,120 $ 100.9: $ 83.1« 3.05% 4.71% 24.91% 23.51% 6.17% 39.8t% 8.8t% $ 1,322

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc..

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgeRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldespurchase discount expected to be accretednitgest income, and a portion



designated as Non-Accretable Difference, whichesgnts the contractual principal on the securiy itnot expected to be collected. The
amount designated as Non-Accretable Difference besgdjusted over time, based on the actual perfacenaf the security, its underlying
collateral, actual and projected cash flow fromhscallateral, economic conditions and other factrthe performance of a security is more
favorable than previously estimated, a portiorhefdamount designated as Non-Accretable Differerag Ime accreted into interest income
over time. Conversely, if the performance of a siggis less favorable than previously estimatbe, amounts designated as Non-Accretable
Difference may increase, resulting in an other-tteanporary impairment loss.
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The following table presents changes to Accret&lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it peddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts ferdgarters and six months ended June 30, 2012Cdrid 2

For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non- Non-
Accretable  Accretable  Accretable  Accretable
Discount Difference Discount Difference
Balance at beginning of peri $ 1,212,27. $ 1,824,951 $ 1,058,39: $ 1,858,76.
Accretion of discoun (38,199 - (29,289 -
Principal Writedown: - (88,56¢) - (44,590
Purchase - - 20,05 7,52
Sales - - (2,27%) -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss - 65,68’ - 62,17(
Transfers from credit reser 71,987 (71,987 304,93( (304,93()
Transfers to credit reser (43,107 43,10% (78,539 78,53¢
Balance at end of peric $ 1,202,95 $ 1,773,149 $ 1,273,27. $ 1,657,47

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non- Non-

Accretable  Accretable  Accretable  Accretable
Discount Difference Discount Difference

Balance at beginning of peric $ 1,176,01' $ 1,931,93¢ $ 1,098,06. $ 1,879,47
Accretion of discoun (74,527 - (57,647 -
Principal Writedown: - (145,94() - (85,977
Purchase 29,56: 16,06 29,02( 71,89.
Sales 33,93¢ (104,949 4,91: (104,34
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss - 114,05: - 95,35:
Transfers from credit reser 107,93 (107,93) 338,19¢ (338,199
Transfers to credit reser (69,969 69,96¢ (139,27) 139,27:
Balance at end of peric $ 1,202,95 $ 1,773,149 $ 1,273,27. $ 1,657,47

Exposure to European Financial Counterparties

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is finartt®ith repurchase agreements. We secure our bimgswinder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendée collateral we pledge exceeds the amourteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitweing at least 3% of the amount borrowed. Ifdbenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletwver our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The
amount of this exposure is the difference betwberatmount loaned to us plus interest due to thatequarty and the fair value of the
collateral pledged by us to the lender includingraed interest receivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements,atlgelAgency RMBS as collateral as part
of a margin arrangement for interest rate swapsattgain an unrealized loss position. If a coyvdaely were to default on its obligation, we
would be exposed to a loss to a swap counterpattyetextent that the amount of our Agency RMBSIgdal exceeded the unrealized loss on
the associated swaps and we were not able to nettevexcess collateral.
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Over the past several years, several large Eurdipearcial institutions have experienced finandidiiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial tosibns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreemente tilave entered into interest rate swaps with satitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swap$ financial institution counterparties as of 80, 2012 that are either domiciled in
Europe or are a U.S.-based subsidiary of a Euregdeaniciled financial institution. The followingltée summarizes our exposure to such
counterparties at June 30, 2012:

Exposure as a

Repurchase Interest Rate Percentage of
Number of Agreement Swaps Total
Country Counterpartie Financing at Fair Value Exposure®) Assets

(dollars in thousand:

France 1 225,79t $ - $ 11,19¢ 0.13%
Germany 1 296,60: (15,964 1,98: 0.02%
Netherland: 1 280,30t - 13,94¢ 0.17%
Switzerlanc 2 457,76t (38,68)) (15,443 -0.1%%
United Kingdom 1 204,16: - 7,28t 0.09%
Total 6 $ 1,464,63. $ (54,646 $ 18,96" 0.22%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgetliteral to each counterparty less the aggregfatepurchase agreement financing
and unrealized loss on swaps for each counterparty.

At June 30, 2012, we did not use credit defaultpsaa other forms of credit protection to hedgedkposures summarized in the table ab

If the European credit crisis continues to impaese major European financial institutions, itasgble that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings andrapiens could be adversely affected by such eveWs.monitor our exposure to our
repurchase agreement and swap counterpartiesemular basis, using various methods, includingew\of recent rating agency actions,
financial relief plans, credit spreads or otherelepments and by monitoring the amount of cashsadrities collateral pledged and the
associated loan amount under repurchase agreearatits the fair value of swaps with our countelipart We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collaterpkasitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or
may try to take other actions to reduce the amotintir exposure to a counterparty when necessary.

Results of Operations for the Quarters and Six Mortis Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

All prior results of operations presented belovthiis “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FomiahCondition and Results of
Operations — Results of Operations for the QuaerdsSix Months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011" bega revised to reflect the effects of
the Restatement.

For the purpose of computing economic net intérestme and ratios relating to cost of funds meastimoughout this report, interest
expense includes net interest payments on intexEsswaps, which is presented as Realized gaissg$) on interest rate swaps in our
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compseleimcome. Interest rate swaps are used to hibdgacrease in interest paid on
repurchase agreements in a rising rate environnfergsenting the net contractual interest paynmniaterest rate swaps with the interest
paid on interest-bearing liabilities reflects ootal contractual interest payments. Managemeint\ed this presentation is useful to investors
because this presentation depicts the economie vdlaur investment strategy, by showing actuaregt expense and net interest

income. Where indicated, interest expense, innditerest payments on interest rate swaps, ésregf to as economic interest

expense. Where indicated, net interest incomeatifig interest payments on interest rate swapsfésred to as economic net interest
income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAfkeasurements reflected in the Management’s Bigmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Less: Add:
Realized Realized
Net Net Losses
Losses on Economic on
GAAP Net Interest Net GAAP Interest Economic
Interest Rate Interest Interest Rate Interest
Income Swaps Income (1) Expense Swaps Expense
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 139,57. $ 5194 $ 13437% $ 21,95 $ 519/ $ 27,14
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 113290 $ 439 $ 108,89: $ 36,37F $ 439 $ 40,77:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2! $ 570,16t $ 15,92¢ $ 554,22. $ 134,85 $ 15,92¢ $ 150,78
For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 136,84 $ 428t $ 13255¢ $ 30,69t $ 4,285 $ 34,98




For the Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 152,78¢ $ 450C $ 148,28 $ 32,79: $ 4500 $ 37,29

For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 144,06t $ 4297 $ 139,760 $ 35,79 $ 4297 $ 40,09(

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
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Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

We had average interest earning assets of $9i8rbdhd $12.1 billion for the quarters ended Junhe2B12 and 2011, respectively, and $9.8
billion and $11.7 billion for the six months endahe 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Our primanyce of income is interest income
earned on our assets. Our interest income wasSiGllion and $179.9 million for the quarters eddrine 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively,
and $311.2 million and $351.9 million for the sixonths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectiviedyyiEld on our portfolio was 6.53%
and 5.96% for the quarters ended June 30, 2012@hY respectively, and 6.36% and 6.04% for therginths ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. For the quarter ended Jun@@IR as compared to the quarter ended June 30, Bl}drest income decreased by $18.3
million due primarily to a decrease in averageregeearning assets of $2.2 billion. For the sinthe ended June 30, 2012 as compared
six months ended June 30, 2011, interest incomesdsed by $40.7 million due primarily to a decrdasgverage interest earning assets of

$1.9 billion.
Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had average borrowed funds of $4.7 billion aéd ®illion and total economic interest expens&2#.1 million and $40.1 million for tl
quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectidyhad average borrowed funds of $4.5 billion &6dL billion and total econor
interest expense of $67.9 million and $78.5 millfonthe six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2@kpectively. Our average cost of fu
was 2.30% and 2.44% for the quarters ended Jun203@, and 2011, respectively. Our average cosiral was 2.44% and 2.56% for the
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectiVélg. economic average cost of funds decreased Hya%® points and the aver
borrowed funds decreased by $1.8 billion during dbarter ended June 30, 2012, when compared tquager ended June 30, 2011.
attribute the decrease in the annualized costraffuo changes in the timing of the amortizatiodelfit issue costs.

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typaraliglated to LIBOR and the term of 1
financing. The table below shows our average begtbfunds, economic interest expense, averageot@shds (inclusive of realized losses
on interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBO&age six-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBORtre¢ to average six-month
LIBOR, and average cost of funds relative to avemge- and six- month LIBOR.

Average Cost of Funds
Average Average Average
One-Month Cost Cost
LIBOR of Funds of Funds
Average Average Relativeto Relativeto Relative to

Average  Economic  Average One- Six- Average Average Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Month Six-Month  One-Month Six-Month
Funds Expense (1  Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended June 3(

2012 $4,718,43. $ 27,14 2.3(% 0.2/% 0.72% (0.4<%) 2.06% 1.5%%
For the quarter ended March :
2012 $4,358,33: $ 40,77 3.74% 0.2€% 0.7€% (0.5(%) 3.48% 2.98%
For the year ended December
31, 2011 $5,989,11° $ 150,78 2.52% 0.22% 0.51% (0.28%) 2.25% 2.01%
For the quarter ended Deceml|
31, 2011 $5,317,000 $ 34,98 2.62% 0.2€% 0.68% (0.42%) 2.37% 1.95%
For the quarter ended Septem
30, 2011 $6,390,22: $ 37,29: 2.3% 0.21% 0.47% (0.2€%) 2.12% 1.86%
For the quarter ended June 3(
2011 $6,560,92( $ 40,09( 2.44% 0.2(% 0.42% (0.22%) 2.24% 2.02%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interatt swaps.

Net Income (Loss) Summary

Our net income for the quarter ended June 30, 2&E2$40.8 million and net income per basic and@ishare was $0.04. Our net income
for the quarter ended June 30, 2011 was $54.0omilnd net income per basic and diluted share $@05. Net income decreased by $13.2
million for the quarter ended June 30, 2012 as @epto June 30, 2011. The decrease in net inemeh®ur net income per share for the
guarter ended June 30, 2012 as compared to Ju®BD|s attributable to a decrease in net inténesime, an increase in OTTI, and an
increase in unrealized losses on our interest-BIMBS.
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Our net income for the six months ended June 302 2as $121.0 million and earnings per basic ahdedl share was $0.12. Our net incc

for the six months ended June 30, 2011 was $154li6mand earnings per basic and diluted shareev@).15. Our net income was generated
primarily by interest income on our portfolio. Netome decreased by $33.6 million for the six rherénded June 30, 2012 as compared to
June 30, 2011. The decrease in our net incomewandet income per share is attributable to a deerén net interest income on our
investments and an increase in OTTI recognize@iniegs on our Non-Agency RMBS.

During the quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2h&éICompany recognized approximately $65.7 millind $62.2 million of net other-than-
temporary credit impairment losses in earninggeel#o Non-Agency RMBS as fair values and the pregalue of cash flows expected to be
collected were below amortized cost. The increas@TiTl is attributable to adverse changes in chshsf expected to be collected. The
adverse change in cash flows is mainly attributabliacreases in projected impairment, principatevdowns, continued deterioration in the
credit quality of our Non-Agency RMBS, and slowipgepayment speeds, which result in a decreaseiprésent value of cash flows
expected to be collected.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 28&1Company recognized approximately $114.1 mildod $95.4 million of net other-
than-temporary credit impairment losses in earnmetgted to Non-Agency RMBS as fair values andpifessent value of cash flows expected
to be collected were below amortized cost.

Other-than-temporary impairment charges, which wecegnized on Non-Agency RMBS, reflect changesunestimate of the extent and
timing of cash flows expected to be collected tiefiect consideration of the estimated future panance of the underlying collateral,
including the expected principal loss over the tefrthe security. At June 30, 2012, we had a guossalized loss of $491 thousand relate
Agency RMBS and a gross unrealized loss of $79llomirelated to Non-Agency RMBS. Impairments ogekcy RMBS in an unrealized
loss position at June 30, 2012 are considered teanpand not credit related. Unrealized losses on-Ngency RMBS for which no OTTI
was recorded during the quarter are considereddrmanpbased on an estimate of the cash flows eggédotbe collected for such RMBS,
which considers recent bond performance and exgdatare performance of the underlying collateg&gnificant judgment is used in
estimating both the Company’s cash flows expeatdzktcollected for its Non-Agency RMBS and the éredmponent of OTTI. Refer to
“Significant Accounting Policies” in the accompanginotes to the consolidated financial statemeantabre information regarding the
recognition of OTTI.
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The table below presents the net income (loss) saamfor the quarters and six months ended Jun2@I® and 2011.

Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2012 2011 2012 2011

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 52,03 $ 70,85¢ $ 103,35( $ 128,94
Interest expens (2,477 (2,959 (4,799 (6,017
Interest income, Non-Agency RMBS and securitizethftransferred to
consolidated VIE: 109,49: 109,00: 207,84 222,96(
Interest expense, Non-Agency RMBS and securitinadd transferred to
consolidated VIE: (19,480 (32,839 (53,529 (65,359
Net interest income (expens 139,57: 144,06t 252,86 280,53.
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss (12,479 (57,926 (44,55) (82,979
Non-credit portion of loss recognized in other comprediee income (loss (53,217 (4,249 (69,500 (12,379
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (65,687 (62,17() (114,05) (95,357
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (20,997 (29,500 (10,180 (9,669
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,199 (4,299 (9,599 (7,149
Realized gains (losses) on terminations of intawst swap: - - - -

Gains (losses) on interest rate swaps (16,186 (23,7979 (19,777) (16,817
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (2,539 11,88 15,41¢ 15,98¢
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: - (919 16,01( 1,72¢
Total other gains (losse (18,719 (12,827 11,65: 90t
Net investment income (los 55,16¢ 69,06¢ 150,46t 186,08«
Other expenses
Management fee to affilial 12,90z 13,15: 25,81: 25,90z
Provision for loan losse (1,059 - (892) 1,442
General and administrative expen 2,541 1,82( 4,53( 3,301
Total other expense 14,38t 14,97 29,45( 30,65!
Income (loss) before income taxe 40,78: 54,09: 121,01¢ 155,43
Income taxe: - 11¢€ 2 81¢
Net income (loss $ 40,78. $ 5397¢ $ 121,01+ $ 154,61

Economic Net Interest Income

Our economic net interest income, which equalgéstdncome excluding interest earned on cash asld equivalents less interest expense
and realized losses on interest rate swaps, to$dlgd.4 million and $139.8 million for the quartersded June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, and $243.3 million and $273.4 millfon the six months ended June 30, 2012 and 2@%spectively. Our net interest spread,
which equals the yield on our average assets éopdhiod less the economic average cost of fundhéoperiod, was 4.23% and 3.52% for
quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectaraly3.37% and 3.48% for the six months ended 30n2012 and 2011,

respectively. We attribute the decline in econongtinterest income in 2012 compared to 2011 eaddtrease in accretion recorded on our
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio, a decrease in interest ggyassets, and an increase in our cost of funds.
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The table below shows our average earning assktstbal interest earned on assets, yield on @eenaterest earning assets, average debt
balance, economic interest expense (including ffieeteof realized losses on interest rate swap®rage cost of funds, economic net interest
income, and net interest rate spread for the pefoesented.

Economic Net Interest Income

Yield on
Average Average Economic Economic Net
Earning Interest Interest Average  Economic Average Netlinterest Interest
Assets Earned on Earning Debt Interest Cost of  Income (1) Rate
Held (1) Assets (1 Assets Balance Expense (2  Funds (2) Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended June 30,

2012 $ 9,898,15. $ 161,52 6.52% $4,718,43 $ 27,14] 2.3(% $ 134,37 4.23%
For the quarter ended March 3:
2012 $ 9,664,090 $ 149,66! 6.1% $4,358,33: $ 40,77 3.74% $ 108,89: 2.45%
For the year ended December < .
2011 $11,438,44 $ 705,01( 6.16% $5,989,11° $ 150,78 2.52% $ 554,22 3.64%
For the quarter ended Decemb |
31, 2011 $10,636,68 $ 167,54( 6.3(% $5,317,000 $ 34,98 2.65% $ 132,55¢ 3.67%
For the quarter ended Septemt !
30, 2011 $11,803,04 $ 185,58: 6.2% $6,390,22; $ 37,29: 2.3% $ 148,28¢ 3.96%
For the quarter ended June 30,
2011 $12,078,39 $ 179,85 5.9¢% $6,560,920 $ 40,09( 244 $ 139,76 3.52%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interatt swaps

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012, we digelbany investments. During the quarter ended 3002011, we sold RMBS with a
carrying value of $23.1 million for realized loss#s$913 thousand. During the six months ended 3002012 and 2011, we sold RMBS
with a carrying value of $63.0 million and $666.8lion for realized gains of $16.0 million and $Inllion, respectively.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions

During the six months ended June 30, 2012, we fiedrthe purchase of $1.2 billion of jumbo prime {ghloans by securitizing and sell
senior bonds to third party investors for net peateeof $1.1 billion. We retained the subordinagét¢hes of the securitization. We did not re-
securitize RMBS or jumbo prime whole loans during fuarter and six months ended June 30, 2011.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Expeses

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $12.9 million $&8.2 million for the quarters ended June 30, 281® 2011, respectively, and $25.8
million and $25.9 million for the six months endaghe 2012 and 2011, respectively. The manageraerns based on our stockholders’
equity as defined in the investment managemeneagzat.

General and administrative (or G&A) expenses wéxé fillion and $1.8 million for the quarters endkohe 30, 2012 and 2011, respectiv
and $4.5 million and $3.3 million for the six mosaténded June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.GR#r expenses increased primarily due
to servicing fees associated with the CSMC 2012-Cévid CSMC 2012-CIM2 securitizations.

Our Manager has agreed to pay all past and futypenses that we and/or our Audit Committee incu(Ipevaluate our accounting policy
related to the application of GAAP to our Non-Aggmesidential mortgage-backed securities portftihe “Evaluation”); (2) restate our
financial statements for the period covering 2008ugh 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the t&ement Filing”); and (3) investigate and
evaluate any shareholder derivative demands arigimg the Evaluation and/or the Restatement Fifthg “Investigation”); provided,
however, that our Manager’s obligation to pay exggsmapplies only to expenses not paid by our inswreder our insurance

policies. Expenses shall include, without limibati fees and costs incurred with respect to awsl{torthe extent such fees and costs exceed
our originally estimated audit fees of $542,400)tside counsel, and consultants engaged by usramal/ Audit Committee for the
Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigatio

Total Management fee and G&A expenses as a pegeenfaverage total assets were 0.75% and 0.59%daquarters ended June 30, 2012
and 2011, respectively, and 0.73% and 0.64% fosithenonths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respictiv
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From our inception through 2009, FIDAC waived ight to require us to pay our pro rata portionexftr telephone, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates iregfor our operations. During the
quarter ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, we reimb&iSe&IC approximately $125 thousand and $170 thoddansuch expenses,
respectively. During the six months ended June8@2 and 2011, we reimbursed FIDAC approximat@§dthousand and $316 thousand
for such expenses, respectively.

The table below shows our total management fee GEW expenses as compared to average total agse@vaerage equity for the periods
presented.

Management Fees, G&A Expenses and Operating ExpenBatios

Total Total
Total Management Management
Management Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
Fee and G&A Expenses/Total Expenses/Averay

Expense: Assets Equity

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 15,44« 0.75% 1.95%
For the quarter ended March 31, 2( $ 14,89¢ 0.74% 1.92%
For the year ended December 31, 2 $ 59,23 0.75% 1.76¢%
For the quarter ended December 31, 2 $ 14,94* 0.68% 1.87%
For the quarter ended September 30, 2 $ 15,08: 0.61% 1.7¢%
For the quarter ended June 30, 2 $ 14,97 0.55% 1.72%

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $40.8 million and $54.0 millfonthe quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 201lgcteply, and $121.0 million and
$154.6 million for the six months ended June 30,28nd 2011, respectively. The table below showsoanomic net interest income,
realized gains (losses) on sale of assets andahlé celated OTTI, realized and unrealized galassgs) on interest rate swaps and 10s, total
management fee and G&A expenses, and income telx,asaa percentage of average equity, and therretuaverage equity for the periods
presented. Our return on average equity decreasedd.19% for the quarter ended June 30, 20111405 for the quarter ended June 30,
2012 and from 8.70% for the six months ended Jn@@11 to 7.62% for the six months ended Jun@B30D2 primarily due to a decrease in
economic net interest income and an increase inl@3Jcbgnized in earnings.

Components of Return on Average Equity

Realized and
Unrealized
Realized Gains Gains (Losses) Total
Economic Net  (Losses) on on Interest Management
Interest Salesand Rate Swaps ar Fee & G&A Income Tax Return on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average |10s/Average Expenses/Averai Benefit/Averag  Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize

For the quarter ended June 30,

2012 16.99% (8.14%) (1.7(%) (1.95%) 0.0(% 5.14%
For the quarter ended March 31,

2012 14.01% (4.18%) 2.41% (1.92%) 0.0(% 10.3%
For the year ended December 3:

2011 16.47% (9.1€%) (1.4€%) (1.7€%) (0.02%) 4.08%
For the quarter ended Decembel

31, 2011 16.5% (7.82%) (1.55%) (1.87%) 0.0(% 5.35%
For the quarter ended Septembe

30, 2011 17.4% (17.75%) (5.0€%) (1.7€%) 0.02% (7.0€%)
For the quarter ended June 30,

2011 16.0%% (7.23%) (0.871%0) (1.72%) (0.01%) 6.15%

* Includes the effect of realized losses on
interest rate sway

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General



Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requiats, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortg:
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diaiks and other general business needs. Our mlrsgiprces of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsfi our investments, borrowings under securitizegiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings.
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To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsénfeinm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagc The terms of the repurchase transaction bongs under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishée Becurities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearnite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengwcally requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tensh€@nditions include changes to the margin maariea requirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentageithsubtracted from the par value of RMBS thédiateralizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thebvadioversies related to the repurchase agreeneditigated in a particular jurisdiction.
These provisions may differ for each of our lenders

We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydsely relying on the cash flows generated by owestiments. These cash flows are
primarily comprised of monthly principal and intet@ayments received on our investments. We nsaysall our investments and utilize
those proceeds to meet our short term liquiditydse® enter into non-recourse financing of our @stbeough sales of securities to third
parties of re-securitization transactions that weehcompleted in prior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetzswill be sufficient to enable us to
meet anticipated shotérm liquidity requirements. However, a declingtia value of our collateral could cause a tempoiquidity shortfall
due to the timing of margin calls on the financargangements and the actual receipt of the caateceto principal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfylmuidity requirements, we may have to sell isiveents, potentially at a loss, or issue debt
or additional equity securities in a common stoffkring.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitaleand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and reecuritizations, repurchase agreements and otiending facilities
as well as proceeds from equity offerings. Assalteof our failure to file our SEC filings by tlidéing date required by the SEC (including 1
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thei®ées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we areligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing ForBr8gistration statements to raise additional gqrapital until filings with the SEC have be
timely made for a full year. Our ineligibility tase Form S-3 during this time period will have gatéese impact on our ability to quickly
access the public capital markets because we vsutdquired to file a long-form registration staégtand wait for the SEC to declare such
registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalaésed above, we may enter into warehouse fadlitise commercial paper, term financing
CDOs, and longer dated structured repurchase agrésmThe use of any particular source of capital funds will depend on market
conditions, availability of these facilities, arfgetinvestment opportunities available to us.

Current Period
We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&tEly.2 million and $206.3 million at June 30, 2@t2l December 31, 2011, respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of appnately $189.4 million and $223.0 million for tlsex months ended June 30, 2012 and
2011, respectively. The cash provided by operaiiityities decreased for the six months ended 30n2012 when compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2011 due primarily to a dsergn economic net interest income earned ondhépio of $30.1 million.

Our investing activities resulted in the net useaxth of $467.8 million and $2.3 billion for th& shonths ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. During the six months ended June8@2 we utilized cash largely to purchase $1.IBhilin jumbo prime whole loans which
was offset by principal payments of $740.5 millietated to all our assets. During the six montidee June 30, 2011 we utilized cash to
purchase $3.7 billion in securities which was dftse proceeds from asset sales of $668.5 milliah@incipal payments of $677.8 million
related to all our assets. The decrease in cashfosinvesting activities for the six months eddene 30, 2012 when compared to the six
months ended June 30, 2011 is primarily attribetabla decline in asset purchases.
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Our financing activities provided net cash of $48®&iillion and $2.1 billion for the six months end#ghe 30, 2012 and 2011,

respectively. The six months ended June 30, 26fl@cted net payments on repurchase agreemeng&l6f®$million as compared to net
proceeds from repurchase agreements of $2.5 bftiothe six months ended June 30, 2011. In additize six months ended June 30, 2012
reflected net proceeds from securitized debt barrgsvof $1.1 billion associated with the issuantdebt in the CSMC 2012-CIM1 and
CSMC 2012-CIM2 securitization trusts, as compaceddt proceeds from securitized debt borrowings3dfl.0 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2011.

We expect to continue to finance our activitiegédy through repurchase agreements. In additiomnase from time to time sell securities as
a source of cash to fund new purchases.

At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the rentamaturities on our RMBS repurchase agreements asfollows.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2011

(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ = G =
1-29 days 1,084,28i 1,368,94!
30 to 59 day: 705,52 836,00°
60 to 89 day: - -
90 to 119 day 279,96¢ 171,83t
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 292,31: 296,20:
Total $ 2,362,08! $ 2,672,98!

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weoufgance our operations with Agency RMBS. Ourreuparties negotiate a ‘haircut’
when we enter into a financing transaction, whiahyvfrom lender to lender. The size of the hairefiiects the perceived risk associated with
holding the RMBS by the lender. The haircut pregidenders with a cushion for daily market valuezemoents that reduce the need for a
margin call to be issued or margin to be returredamal daily increases or decreases in RMBS salgeur. At June 30, 2012, the weigt
average haircut on our repurchase agreements waBé&8pite the haircut, repurchase agreements gulgdo two types of margin calls.

First, there are monthly margin calls that aregeigd as principal payments and pre-payments eeévesl by us as these payments lower the
value of the collateral. As a result, we expeaeieive margin calls from our repurchase countégsamonthly simply due to the principal
paydowns on our Agency RMBS. The monthly principayments and pre-payments are not known in advamteary depending on the
behavior of the borrowers related to the underlyimgtgages. Second, counterparties make margis @atketurn margin as a result of normal
daily increases or decreases in asset valuesdditian, when financing assets using standard fof®IFMA Master Repurchase Agreemel
the counterparty to the agreement typically natgxposure to us on all outstanding repurchasesagmets and issues margin calls if
movement of the asset values in the aggregate dx¢keir allowable exposure to us. A decline seasalues could create a margin call, or
may create no margin call depending on the couatgrs specific policy. In addition, counterpagieonsider a number of factors, including
their aggregate exposure to us as a whole andutinder of days remaining before the repurchasedddias closes prior to issuing a margin
call. See Note 5 to our Consolidated Financialestaints for a discussion on how we determine thevédiies of the RMBS collateralizing ¢
repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average repurchaaadsmband repurchase balance at each period etttefperiods presented. Our balance at
period-end tends to have little fluctuation frore tiverage balances except in periods where wedarstiag the size of our portfolio by using
leverage. Our repurchase agreement balance aB02012 decreased compared to our average regaaralgreement balance for the qus
ended December 31, 2011 due to sales of Agency RMBIBg the fourth quarter of 2011.
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Average Repurchase
Repurchase Balance at Peric

Period Balance End
(dollars in thousand:
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 2,412,82 $ 2,362,08!
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 2,554,29' $ 2,502,871
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 3,843,68: $ 2,672,98!
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 3,379,53' $ 2,672,98
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 4,301,25 $ 4,171,19
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 4,308,78 $ 4,320,48

We are not required to maintain any specific debtquity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverfogehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011 tairdebt was approximately $4.9 billion
and $4.5 billion, which represented a debt-to-gquitio of approximately 1.6:1 and 1.5:1, respeadiv We include repurchase agreements
and securitized debt in the numerator of our degeuity ratio and stockholders’ equity as the deimator.

We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-dedg@ghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or yat- Our borrowings at period end a
shapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nursheuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiaver the period. Our borrowings
will change as we implement our portfolio and nisinagement strategies to address changing mam@itions by increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during pendasn we raise capital, and in certain instancesmwag purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capiiakraSince our average borrowings and period enetings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period jolesa more accurate representation of our expasuhe risks associated with leverage.

Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigton agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiedd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our salestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stookdinary brokers’ transactions at
market prices or other transactions as agreed ketwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of ommeon stock under the equity
distribution agreement during the quarters endeé 30, 2012 or 2011. As a result of our failuréileoour SEC filings by the filing date
required by the SEC (including the grace periodnited by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities Exchahgeof 1934, as amended), we will

not be able to issue shares of our common stockritheé equity distribution agreement until filingih the SEC have been timely made for a
full year.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a Dividendv@stment and Share Purchase Plan, or DRSPPDRB&P provided holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiicadly reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdke optional cash payments to purchase shams @bmmon stock. The DRSPP was
administered by the Administrator, Computershangiigy the six months ended June 30, 2012 we r&i$&@ thousand by issuing 39,000
shares through the DRSPP. During the six monttsadune 30, 2011 we raised $542 thousand by g435,000 shares through the
DRSPP. The DRSPP was suspended when we were ger lourrent on our filings. As a result of oulldeg to file our SEC filings by the
filing date required by the SEC (including the greriod permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the SdearExchange Act of 1934, as amended),
we will not be able to issue shares of our DRSR# filmgs with the SEC have been timely made éofull year.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2012 we decliivédends to common shareholders totaling $92.4ianil or $0.09 per share. During the
quarter ended June 30, 2011, we declared dividencemmon shareholders totaling $133.4 million$0rl3 per share.

During the six months ended June 30, 2012 the Coyngeclared dividends to common shareholders ta&P05.4 million, or $0.20 per
share. During the six months ended June 30, 28&1Company declared dividends to common sharetotd&ling $277.1 million, or $0.27
per share.

The Board of Directors has initiated a regular teréy dividend of $0.09 per common share for thedthnd fourth quarter of 2012, and for
each quarter of 2013.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarengf June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
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Related Party Transactions
Management Agreeme

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initiekrm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestibo certain termination rights. The CompemsatCommittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerhp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managguarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockhold&ysity (as defined in the management agreemdiftpctive November 28, 2012, the
management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosg Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will ramin effect until we are current on
all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager foratincurred under the management agreementditian, the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationbede expenses are allocated between ou
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfigmnoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpg@ur Manager as calculated at each
quarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun

March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

Because of the Restatement, we amended the manaigagneement on March 8, 2013. In the amendmentemorialized the reduction in
the management fee. Additionally, our Manager edte pay all past and future expenses that weandf Audit Committee incur to: (1)
evaluate our accounting policy related to the igpfibn of GAAP to our non-Agency RMBS portfolidh@ Evaluation); (2) restate our
financial statements for the period covering 2088ugh 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (the &estent Filing); and (3) investigate and
evaluate any shareholder derivative demands ariging the Evaluation and/or the Restatement Fifthg Investigation); provided, however,
that our Manager’s obligation to pay expenses appinly to expenses not paid by our insurers uodieinsurance policies. Expenses shall
include, without limitation, fees and costs incareith respect to auditors, outside counsel, amsglbants engaged by us and/or our Audit
Committee for the Evaluation, Restatement Filind #ire Investigation.

The amendment also provides that the independesttdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. Addittip, we may terminate the management agreemesttefé immediately if (i) our Manag
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation ofl&) or embezzlement against the us, (ii) theam isvent of any gross negligence on the

of our Manager in the performance of its dutiesartie management agreement, (iii) there is a carnement of any proceeding relating to
our Managers bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a distoluof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is conuictd (including a plea of no
contendere) a felony.
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Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 201 Maoager earned management fees of $12.9 milliortaBc2 million and for the six
months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, our Managedmanagement fees of $25.8 million and $25.9anjlrespectively and received
expense reimbursements of $125 thousand and $t@éahd and $240 thousand and $316 thousand, rieghectFrom our inception
through 2009, our Manager waived its right to reguis to pay our pro rata portion of rent, telehauriilities, office furniture, equipment,
machinery and other office, internal and overhegibases of our Manager and its affiliates requiocedur operations.

FIDAC uses the proceeds from its management fparinto pay compensation to its officers and emgdsywho, notwithstanding that certain
of them also are our officers, receive no cash @nsation directly from us.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administrate@ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnt clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such services.
RCap may also provide brokerage services to us fiom to time. During the quarter ended and sixths June 30, 2012, fees paid to RCap
were $29 thousand and $73 thousand respectivalyin@the quarter and six months ended June 3Q,,Z6&s paid to RCap were $55
thousand.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stookitdvlanager’s employees and members of our boadit@ftors on January 2,

2008. During the quarters ended June 30, 2012@ht], 31,600 shares of restricted stock we haddataio our Manages’employees vest
and of those vested shares 202 and 938 sharedoxieiged, respectively. During the six months eshdeine 30, 2012 and 2011, 63,200 sh
of restricted stock we had awarded to our Managezmployees vested and of those vested sharemn881,500 shares were forfeited,
respectively. We did not grant any incentive awatdisng the quarter and six months ended June@®I(2.2At June 30, 2012 and 2011 there
were approximately 695,000 and 822,000 unvestekstud restricted stock issued to employees of RIDAespectively. For the quarter
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, compensation expsesseiated with the amortization of the fair vadfi¢he restricted stock was
approximately $88 thousand and $121 thousand, cesply. For the six months ended June 30, 201229111, compensation expense
associated with the amortization of the fair vadfiehe restricted stock was approximately $169 sama and $249 thousand, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following tables summarize our contractual gdgiions at June 30, 2012. The estimated princgmayment schedule of the securitized

debt is based on expected cash flows of the retsdi@mortgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted for pitejgdosses on the underlying collaterz
the debt.

June 30, 201
Greater
One to Three to Than
Within One Three Five or Equal to
Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:
Repurchase agreements for RM $ 2,362,08 $ - % - $ - $ 2,362,08
Securitized dek 654,53: 787,42 434,36¢ 630,66( 2,506,99
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 4,764 5 - - 4,76¢
Interest expense on securitized debi 100,48! 130,25¢ 84,55¢ 230,65¢ 545,95¢
Total $ 3,121,860 $ 917,69 $ 51892 $ 861,31¢ $ 5,419,80:

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaifalune 30, 201.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatatities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, which would have hestablished for the purpose of facilitating offdrate sheet arrangements or other

contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtivee, have not guaranteed any obligations of uncaeeld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any secitities.
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Capital Requirements
At June 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, we hadaterial commitments or capital expenditures.
Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamd®me (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stackholders. To insure liquidity is adequate,tdsvice and operating needs are satisfied
before declaring dividends.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilitix® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaiigénterest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements agpgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribitindill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distrié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKBlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adativities and financial condition are measuredwéference to historical cost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.

Other Matters

We calculate that at least 75% of our assets wea#figd REIT assets, as defined in the Code, akiné 30, 2012 and December 31,
2011. We also calculate that our revenue qualiieshe 75% source of income test and for the $8Urce of income test rules for the
quarters ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. Consegueatmet the REIT income and asset tests for thegeds. We also met all REIT
requirements regarding the ownership of our cometook and the distribution of our net income. Hfere, as of June 30, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, we believe that we qualified REIT under the Code.

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssacd to become regulated as an investment comyoahgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, ottyabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.

Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thatgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuie investment securities having a vi
exceeding 40% of the value of the issedotal assets (exclusive of U.S. Government seéesiand cash items) on an unconsolidated ba
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investmentséiies,” among other things, are securities issmedhajorityowned subsidiaries that re
on the exemption from registration provided by #&c8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Adselding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we nfiayn in the future, rely on the

exemption from registration provided by Section)&)XC) of the Investment Company Act. Section)@XC), as interpreted by the staff of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEEGYires us to invest at least 55% of our assétaortgages and other liens on and
interest in real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estagsets) and at least 80% of our assets in QuatjfiReal Estate Assets plus real estate relatec
assets. The assets that we acquire, thereforéméted by the provisions of and the rules andutations promulgated under the Investment
Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept etdbesd “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aoty Mortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778)ddd the concept release, the SEC is reviewinggdrgtve issues related to the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. The Company is monitoring @epments related to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of June 30, 201Daeember 31, 2011, we were in compliance with ttesrgption from registration provided
by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company. Act
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Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidve risk can be quantified from monitoring therent market environment as well as
economic forecasts. We seek to actively manageitia to earn sufficient compensation to justiking those risks and to maintain capital
levels consistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiableHoans and face more credit risk
on assets we own which are rated below “AAA”. Ttredit risk related to these investments pertainhe ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduphout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgcdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigneprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrgaefiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary padfolanagement system, as well as third party soéwgstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent undging review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit aludition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crit@iece we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS which we acqtoreour portfolio are reviewed by us
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based crit@iar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS irdsg utilizing its proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéatimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on NorAgency RMBS and other ABS. This analysis includesvaluation of the collateral characteristicpaufing the RMBS suc
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoaingother pertinent factors.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Inelyour control. We are subject to interest ratieinsconnection with our investments and
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities, secuiitiZeg-securitization, commercial paper
and term financing CDOs. Our repurchase agreenaetsvarehouse facilities may be of limited duratioat are periodically refinanced at
current market rates. We intend to mitigate thék through utilization of derivative contracts,mparily interest rate swap agreements.

I nterest Rate Effect on Net | nterest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financifigcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetsldlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed
interest rate assets will not be mafahded. During periods of rising interest rates, blorrowing costs associated with our investmentd tc
increase while the income earned on our fixed @#erate investments may remain substantially urgdd This will result in a narrowing of
the net interest spread between the related amse@tsorrowings and may even result in losses. Egrtturing this portion of the interest rate
and credit cycles, defaults could increase andtra#saredit losses to us, which could adversefeefour liquidity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwffect on the spread between interest-earnirggsaasd interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumels levprepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid atjblerate mortgage loans and RME

If prepayments are slower or faster than assurhedifée of the mortgage loans and RMBS will be lengr shorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayndamay cause losses on such transactions.
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I nterest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@ftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
risk that the fair value of our assets will increas decrease at different rates than that ofiabilities, including our hedging instruments. !
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdlatgion using various financial models and
current market information. Different models andiimoelologies can produce different durations fordhme securities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatiity in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factonsact the fair value of our interest raensitive investments and hedging instruments,
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecttarto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ antth difference may be material to our
stockholders.

I nterest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewety’s interest yield may change during
any given period. However, our borrowing costs parg to our financing agreements will not be suttiesimilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttition by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBSeffagtively be limited. This problem will be magieifl to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #silt in some portion of the interest being defitaed added to the principal
outstanding. This could result in our receipt alsleoupon income on our adjustable-rate mortgagB848S than we need in order to pay the
interest cost on our related borrowings. Thesefaatould lower our net interest income or causetdoss during periods of rising interest
rates, which could have a negative effect on marfcial condition, cash flows and results of opernst

I nterest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdgéng, have interest rates based on
indices and re-pricing terms similar to, but of gahat shorter maturities than, the interest radeeas and re-pricing terms of the mortgages
and RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indicds@pricing terms of our mortgage assets andunging sources will not be identical,
thereby creating an interest rate mismatch betwaseats and liabilities. Our cost of funds woulelkrise or fall more quickly than would ¢
earnings rate on assets. During periods of charigiegest rates, such interest rate mismatcheslemdatively impact our financial conditic
cash flows and results of operations. To mitigaterest rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgfirmgegies discussed above. Our analysis
of risks is based on FIDAC's experience, estimategjels and assumptions. These analyses rely orlswatiich utilize estimates of fair
value and interest rate sensitivity. Actual ecormoainditions or implementation of investment dexisi by our management may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimai@nd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolicn@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselytfteduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gifi@stthe potential changes in net interest incame portfolio value solely as it relates to our
Agency RMBS portfolio should interest rates go uglown 25, 50, and 75 basis points, assuming ghralbvements in the yield curves. All
changes in income and value are measured as pageectianges from the projected net interest inc@mdeportfolio value at the base interest
rate scenario. The base interest rate scenation@ssinterest rates at June 30, 2012. Estimatasdieg prepayments and other activities are
made at each level of rate shock. Actual reswaltsccdiffer significantly from these estimates.

61




June 30, 201

Projected
Percentage Projected
Change in Net Percentage
Interest Change in Portfoli

Change in Interest Ra Income Value
-75 Basis Point 16.55% 1.98%
-50 Basis Point 10.53% 1.50%
-25 Basis Point 4.94% 1.24%
Base Interest Ra - -
+25 Basis Point (4.61%) 0.78%
+50 Basis Point (8.61%) 0.47%
+75 Basis Point (12.64%) 0.10%

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesesitments, premiums and discounts on such investmgihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in pregaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasghpremiums, thereby reducing the
interest income earned on the investments. Conlyediscounts on such investments are acceleratédecreted into interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggrthe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmé or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimtier an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates as the boimgwosts are effectively fixed for the durationtloé fixed-rate portion of the related

assets. However, if prepayment rates decreasesing interest rate environment, the life of theed-rate portion of the related assets could
extend beyond the term of the swap agreement er bédging instrument. This could have a negatiygaict on our results from operations,
as borrowing costs would no longer be fixed after énd of the hedging instrument while the incoaraed on the hybrid adjustable-rate
assets would remain fixed. In extreme situatiorsyway be forced to sell assets to maintain adedjgaidity, which could cause us to incur
losses.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
in other comprehensive income excluding IO RMBSchtare recorded in earnings. The estimated fairevaf these securities fluctuates
primarily due to changes in interest rates, prepayrapeeds, market liquidity, credit quality, atlden factors. Generally, in a rising interest
rate environment, the estimated fair value of theesirities would be expected to decrease; corlyemse decreasing interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these sesiwould be expected to increase. As markétility increases or liquidity decreases,
the fair value of our investments may be adversepacted.

Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayrealmproperty directly in the future. Residenfiabperty values are subject to volatility
and may be affected adversely by a number of fachocluding, but not limited to, national, regibaad local economic conditions (which
may be adversely affected by industry slowdownsathdr factors); local real estate conditions (salan oversupply of housing); change
continued weakness in specific industry segmemwtssttuction quality, age and design; demographitofa; natural disasters; and retroactive
changes to building or similar codes. In additidecreases in property values reduce the valueeafdtiateral and the potential proceeds
available to a borrower to repay our loans, whighl@ also cause us to incur losses.
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Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debtstghe effects of major interest rate changesg@rerally seek to manage risk by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the rasgé¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreememtsave a range of different maturities, terms, dizations and interest rate adjustment
periods;

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, @mi caps, floors and forward sales to adjustrtterest rate sensitivity of our investments
and our borrowings

e using securitization financing to lower averagst®f funds relative to short-term financing vééscfurther allowing us to receive the
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pedbtime in contrast to short term financing and uni&y dates of the investments not
included in the securitization; al

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, tleedst rate indices, interest rate adjustment pgriaad gross reset margins of our
investments and the interest rate indices and tu@rg periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagt movements. Methods for evaluating interestniak include an analysis of our interest
rate sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference tlveen interest-earning assets and interest-bebainitities maturing or re-pricing within a
given time period. A gap is considered positiveewlhe amount of interest-rate sensitive assetseglscthe amount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whenahsount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities eadd® interest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/tend to adversely affect net interest incomeilenvd positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a peribf@iting interest rates, a negative gap would temdesult in an increase in net interest
income, while a positive gap would tend to affeet interest income adversely. Because differgmasyof assets and liabilities with the same
or similar maturities may react differently to chyas in overall market rates or conditions, chamgésterest rates may affect net interest
income positively or negatively even if an instibmt were perfectly matched in each maturity catggor

The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imterest-bearing liabilities at June 30,
2012. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitimin a particular period were determined in adesice with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period inclvitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they matured does include the effect of the interest ratepswal he interest rate sensitivity of our
assets and liabilities in the table could vary satitgally based on actual prepayments.

(dollars in thousands)

Greater tha

Within 3 3-12 1Yearto 3 3

Months Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 222961 $ 1,478,200 $ 1,556,377 $ 9,397,90. $14,662,09
Cash equivalent 116,22° - - - 116,22
Total rate sensitive ass¢ 2,345,84. 1,478,20! 1,556,37 9,397,90: 14,778,32
Rate sensitive liabilitie 606,66 835,22" 137,22: 2,052,14. 3,631,25
Interest rate sensitivity ge $1,739,18. $ 642,970 $ 1,419,15. $ 7,345,751 $11,147,06
Cumulative rate sensitivity ge $1,739,18. $ 2,382,15. $ 3,801,30! $11,147,06
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as 12% 16% 26% 75%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager'sigapce, estimates, models and assumptions. HEmedgses rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatidrinvestment decisions by our manager
may produce results that differ significantly fréhe estimates and assumptions used in our modelharprojected results shown in the
above tables and in this Form 10-Q. These anaby@atain certain forward-looking statements andsaigect to the safe harbor statement set
forth under the heading, “Special Note RegardingMaod-Looking Statements."
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ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 1K+or the year ended December 31, 2011, we disditisgt management had identified a material wea
in our internal controls over financial reportis of December 31, 2011 we determined that thegdeand operating effectiveness
controls over the selection, application and revidwthe implementation of accounting policies te@e amounts recorded and disclosed
fairly stated in accordance with GAAP were insu#fit. Specifically, we determined that our resosraed level of technical account
expertise within the accounting function were ificignt to properly evaluate and account for thenptexity of our investments in Non-
Agency RMBS, InteresBnly Strips, impairment of securitized loans hald ivestment, and related disclosures in accomlarith generall
accepted accounting principles. Additionally, altbb the Restatement did not result in changesstofital estimates of the fair value of
investments in RMBS or our estimates of the relatesh flows expected to be collected that senalzssis for our estimates of fair value
income recognition, our review controls over sigraht estimates and the financial reporting prosesse not designed precisely enoug
prevent or detect a material misstatement. Spedificthere was no precise and direct independeview and validation of inputs usec
significant estimates such as the determinatiotheffair value, impairment, or interest income tedato our investments in RMBS ¢
securitized loans held for investment. There wae ab evidence of an independent validation ofutations used in significant account
estimates to ensure the accounting policies wepeogpately implemented. In addition, there wasawidence of review of the schedt
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the diolased financial statements by a person, othen ttie preparer, with the necess
competency and authority. As a result, income athérethan-temporary impairment related to certaon¥gency RMBS were material
misstated. This material weakness resulted ifRéstatement.

In response to the material weakness describedealthwing the fourth quarter of 2011, we engagddading accounting firm to advi
management with respect to accounting standar@ses support and engaged a leading professiondtag organization specializing
accounting and reporting matters to aid managemtihtkey facets of the Restatement. During 201@ 20113, we hired additional resour
in accounting policy, middle office and financiaporting roles, including technical accounting sgbjmatter resources and a new C
Financial Officer.

Additionally, we have been adding resources anccgmees to remediate the aforementioned materiakngea regarding the dir
independent review and validation of inputs usedigmificant estimates such as the determinatiotheffair value, impairment, or inter
income related to our investments in RMBS and seéred loans held for investment. In addition teetadding of resources and
formalization of a middle office function, we hagagaged two additional independent pricing serviocgest and validate the models we
to value our portfolio. Growing the accounting ipgl middle office and financial reporting groupshacreased the opportunity to furt
segregate duties and improve the technical competgiithe accounting function and improve our conémvironment.

In addition, our management, with the participatidour Chief Executive Officer and Chief Finand@fficer, has identified the following
additional issue related to our material weaknessternal control over financial reporting. Prawsly reported amounts in total OTTI losses
and the non-credit portion of loss recognized ihédtomprehensive income (loss) in the ConsolidStatements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income were reported on a cumulbtiges. As discussed in our immaterial restatemisatosure in this Form 10-Q, the
current presentation reflects only that portionadél OTTI loss that is incremental for the repagtperiod giving consideration to OTTI
reported and recognized in prior periods. Accorlyinptal OTTI losses and the non-credit portioriass recognized in other comprehensive
income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of@jmas and Comprehensive Income was changedda2@hl and 2012 periods presented,
for comparability purposes.

As a result, our Chief Executive Officer and Chiréiancial Officer determined that the aforementtbmneaterial weaknesses in our inte
controls over financial reporting were not remeetiatind that our disclosure controls and proceduezs not effective as of June 30, 2
and as of the date of this report.

Based upon the substantial work performed durigRBstatement process and the procedures perfdhredh the filing this Form 1@,
we have concluded that the consolidated finandatements for the periods covered by and inclugethis Form 109 are prepared
accordance with GAAP and fairly present in all mialerespects, our financial position, results pemtion and cash flows for each of
periods presented herein.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebleaveno changes in our “internal control over faiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act) that asmliduring the period covered by this quarterlyorephat has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, our interoantrol over financial reporting.

PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatseor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by @eitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstants. This investigation is
ongoing.
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Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigmand letters alleging, among other things,ttreadirectors and our officers, as well as
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesis by failing to institute adequate internahtzols and failing to ensure that we made
accurate financial disclosures. These lettersastjamong other things, that the Board of Dirextake action to investigate and remedy the
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit Corttee is currently reviewing the demand lettersanreection with its ongoing investigation
arising from the restatement of our historical ficial statements. At the conclusion of its invgsstion, the Audit Committee will make
recommendations to the Board of Directors abowpropriate response to the letters. At this tiwecannot predict the outcome of the
matters addressed in these shareholder demandeftkese and other potential actions that mafjldrbagainst us, whether with or without
merit, may divert the attention of management fambusiness, harm our reputation and otherwiselmasg a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operagiand cash flows.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Forl0-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, widsétrisk factors related to (i)
risks associated with the Restatement and relatstens, (i) risks associated with adverse develepts in the mortgage finance and credit
markets, (iii) risks associated with our managenaerd relationship with our Manager, (iv) risks regd to our business, (v) risks related to
our investments, (vi) regulatory and legal riskai)(risks related to our common stock, and ({@iX risks. You should carefully consider the
risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K for the yemded December 31, 2011. As of the date hettezre have been no material changes to
the risk factors set forth in our Form 10-K for thear ended December 31, 2011.
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ltem 6. Exhibits
Exhibits:
The exhibits required by this item are set forthtlom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description

Number

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chinievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1tie Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmrated herein by
reference)

3.2 Articles of Amendment of Chimera InvestmentiZmation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’'s@d®rt on Form 8-K filed on
May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

3.3 Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retare

3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 2 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorporéeetin by reference

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmrated herein by
reference)

31.1  Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Enxtge Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Qfér of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30hef3arban«Oxley Act of 2002

32.1  Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Enxtee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2  Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finanic@ifficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.SS&ction 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS Instance Document **

é?ﬁgit 101.SCH Taxonomy Extension Schema Document **

ésﬁtl)_it 101.CAL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **

)E(Eﬁklgit 101.DEF Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created**

)E(Eﬁklgit 101.LAB Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

é?ﬁgit 101.PRE Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *

XBRL

** Submitted electronically herewith. tAthed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the follmrdocuments formatted in XBRL (Extensi

Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of June 30, 2@ir#a(idited) and December 31, 2011
(derived from the audited consolidated financiatesnents); (i) Consolidated Statements of Openatamd Comprehensive Income for the
guarters and six months ended June 30, 2012 arid gllConsolidated Statement of Stockholdersuig(Deficit) for the six months ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011; (iv) Consolidated Statesr@ntash Flows for the six months ended June B2 2nd 2011; and (v) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdéport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: _/s/ Matthew Lambiase
Matthew Lambias
(ChiefExecutiveOfficer and Presider
Date: October 31, 201 and duly authorized officer of the registje

By: _/s/ Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan
(ChiefFinancial Officet
Date: October 31, 201 and principal financial officer of the regant)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify the
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and praesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdoribe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b. Designed such internal control over finanogglorting, or caused such internal control oueatficial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princijy

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and preseéntisis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thggsteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrotsbver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilmves management or other employees who have disamtirole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: October 31, 201

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Rob Colligan, certify that
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant@éments, and other financial information includethis report, fairly present in i
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13e15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and praesdur caused such disclosure controls and proesdoribe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b. Designed such internal control over finanogglorting, or caused such internal control oueatficial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoce with generally accepted accounting princijy

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures and preseéntisis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thggsteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internalrotsbver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that ilmves management or other employees who have disamtirole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: October 31, 201

/s/_Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June
30, 2012 to be filed with Securities and Exchangen@ission on or about the date hereof (the “RepdrtMatthew Lambiase, President, ¢
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify rpuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@062, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
October 31, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June

30, 2012 to be filed, I, Rob Colligan, Chief Fined®©fficer of the Company, certify, pursuant tacBen 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/sl Rob Colligar

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
October 31, 201



